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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the Fortieth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Goodricke Group Limited will be
held at the Eastern Zonal Cultural Centre, IB 201, Sector - III, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700 106 on Thursday, the 28th July,
2016 at 10.00 a.m. to transact the following business :-

Ordinary Business
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the period ended 31st March,
2016, and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend for the period ended 31st March, 2016.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. P. J. Field, (Holding DIN 02634920) who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for reappointment.

4. Appointment of M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata, as Statutory Auditors of the
Company.

"Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof), M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (ICAI Registration No.
117366W/W100018), who have offered themselves for appointment and have confirmed their eligibility under
Section 141 of the Act and  the relevant provisions of Chapter X of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (AGM) in place of M/s. Lovelock & Lewes, Chartered Accountants,
(Regn. No. 301056E), Statutory Auditors of the Company who are  retiring at the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting (subject to ratification of reappointment by the members at every AGM held after this AGM), till the
conclusion of the forty fifth  Annual General Meeting of the Company, and at such remuneration fixed by the Board
of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee."

Special Business 
5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary

Resolution:

"Resolved that Mrs. Susan Ann Walker (DIN 07225692) who was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company with effect from  30th July, 2015 by the Board of Directors in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act
2013 and pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, and who holds such office until this Annual
General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company received a notice from a Shareholder under Section 160 of
the Companies Act 2013 proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company, who shall be liable to retire by rotation."

"Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution :

"Resolved that  in terms of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies  Act, 2013 Read
with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force)  the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors namely M/s. Shome & Banerjee,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 000001) for conducting Audit of Cost Accounting records maintained by
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the Company as applicable, for the year  ending 31st March, 2017 as approved by the Board of Directors based on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the details of which are given in the Explanatory Statement in respect
of this item of business be and is hereby ratified."

"Resolved further that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any statutory  modification (s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), the draft regulations contained in the Articles of Association submitted to this meeting, be approved
and adopted in substitution and to the entire exclusion, of the regulations contained in the existing Articles of
Association of the Company." 

"Resolved further that approval of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (including
any Committee thereof) to do all such Acts, deeds, matters and things and take such steps as may be required in
this connection including seeking of necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution and to settle  any questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard."

The Register of Members and Share Transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from Friday, the 22nd July, 2016
to Thursday, the 28th July 2016, both days inclusive for payment of dividend. 

By Order of the Board

Place : Kolkata S. Banerjee
Dated :  23rd May, 2016 Company  Secretary
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NOTES & INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO

ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. The instrument of Proxy,  in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's
Registered Office not less than forty-eight hours before the Meeting.

In terms of Rule 19 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as
a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights.  A member holding more than
ten percent of the total Share capital of those carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as a proxy for any person or shareholder.

2. The Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of items of Special
Business is annexed hereto. 

3. The information as required to be provided in terms of the Listing Regulations  with the Stock Exchange regarding
the Directors who are proposed to be appointed / re-appointed is annexed. 

4. The dividend that may be declared by the Company at the Fortieth Annual General Meeting will be paid on or after
the 2nd August, 2016 (i) to those members holding shares in physical mode whose names appear on the Register
of member on 21st July 2016 (ii) In respect of the shares held in electronic form the dividend will be paid to the
'beneficial owners' of the shares at the end of business hours on 21st July 2016 as per details provided by the
Depositories for this purpose. 

5. Dividend in respect of shares held in dematerialized form shall be credited to the owner's bank account directly
through National Automated Clearing House (NACH), wherever, NACH facility is available subject to availability of
bank account details with 9 digit MICR and 11 digit IFS Code.  In case the said details have not been provided to
the concerned Depository Participant or there is any change, the same may please be intimated to the concerned
Depository Participant immediately. 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its  Circular No. CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013 dated 21st  March, 2013
has mandated usage of electronic mode for making cash payments such as dividend etc. to the investors of
Companies whose securities are listed on the Stock Exchange. 

6. Shareholders holding shares in physical form and desirous of having NACH facility, should provide their bank
details,  9 digit MICR and 11 digit IFS Code number to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company
immediately.  The shareholders who have already given their bank details should furnish the same only if there is
any change. 

Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to notify change in address, if any, to the
Company's Share Transfer Agent quoting their Folio Numbers.  Shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form,
should intimate change of their address, if any, to their Depository Participant. 

7. Under Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956 the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a
period 7 years from due date is required to be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund,
established under corresponding Section 205 C of the Companies Act, 1956. In accordance with the Notification of
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 10th May, 2012 any amount of dividend which remained unpaid or
unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date such dividend became due for payment have been transferred
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund set up by the Government of India. 
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The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid or unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on the date
of the last AGM (30th March, 2015) on its website www.goodricke.com.

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide Circular ref. No. MRD/DOP/CIR-05/2007 dated April 27,
2007 made PAN mandatory for all securities market transactions and off market/private transaction involving transfer
of shares in physical form of listed Companies, it shall be mandatory for the transferee (s) to furnish copy of PAN
Card to the Company/RTAs for registration of such transfer of shares. 

SEBI further clarified that it shall be mandatory to furnish a copy of PAN in the following cases:-

(a) Deletion of name of the deceased shareholder (s), where the shares are  held in the name of two / more
shareholders.

b) Transmission of shares to the legal heir(s), where deceased shareholder was the sole holder of shares.

c) Transposition of shares - when there is a change in the order of names in which physical shares are held
jointly in the name of two or more shareholders.

9. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail addresses for
receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company electronically. 

10.  Instructions for voting :

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Listing Regulation the company is pleased to
provide members holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, the facility to exercise their right
to vote on all the resolutions set forth in this notice by electronic means. The process and manner of voting by
electronic means, the time schedule including the time period during which the votes may be cast and all other
necessary instructions and information in this respect have been given in a separate sheet attached hereto forming
part of the notice. 

The Company has also made available voting through ballot at the venue of the Annual General Meeting and the
members attending the Annual General Meeting, who have not cast their votes through electronic means shall be
able to exercise the right at the Annual General Meeting through ballot. 

Explanatory Statements
(Pursuant to Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013)

Item nos. 5

Mrs. Susan Ann Walker (DIN 07225692) aged about 49 years is a qualified Chartered Accountant from U.K.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Articles of Association of the Company and pursuant to the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors had at its meeting held on
30th July, 2015 appointed Mrs. Susan Ann Walker, as an additional director of the Company. Mrs. Walker, being an
additional director holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting. 
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Mrs. Walker was appointed as an Executive Director of Camellia plc. in April 2015 and as Group Finance Director for
Camellia plc. on 14th June 2015. Prior to joining Camellia plc. she held senior  position as Director, Corporate Finance
at KPMG.  Given her experience, knowledge and expertise in various financial fields the board consider her appointment
to be in the interest of the Company and recommend the resolution contained in Item No. 5 of the convening notice for
approval of the members as an ordinary resolution. 

Except Mrs. Susan Ann Walker none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), or relatives of Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel are interested or concerned in the said resolution. 

Item No. 6

In terms of Section 148 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 ('the Rule'), the
Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 23rd May 2016 appointed Messrs Shome & Banerjee, Cost
Accountants, as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2017 on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee of the Company.

The Board, in terms of the Rule, approved the remuneration of the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit
Committee, which is subject to ratification by the members. 

The remuneration fixed by the Board is as under :

Cost Auditors Remuneration

Shome & Banerjee Rs. 175000/- for auditing the records of 17 tea estates.

In addition to above, the Cost Auditors will be reimbursed out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them on actual
basis.

The Resolution set out in Item No. 6 of the convening Notice is to be considered accordingly and the Board recommends
the same. 

No Director or any Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or any of their relatives is concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in respect of the said resolution. 

Item No. 7

The Articles of Association (hereinafter referred as "AOA") of the Company is based on the Companies Act, 1956 and
some of the regulations in the existing AOA are not in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to
implementation of the Companies Act, 2013 certain regulations of the existing AOA of the Company require alteration
or deletion hence, it is considered expedient to replace wholly the existing AOA by a new set of AOA.

The new AOA to be substituted in place of the existing AOA are based on table "F" of the Act which sets out the Articles
of Association for a Company limited by shares.

A draft of the Articles of Association of the Company are available in the Company's website i.e. www.goodricke.com
and also available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except
Saturday / Sunday between 2:00  p.m. and 4:00 p.m. prior to the date of the Annual General Meeting. Copies of the
existing altered Articles of Association of the Company would be available for inspection during the meeting.  None of
the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise in the special resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the convening notice.  

The Board recommends this special resolution set out at item  No. 7 of the Notice for approval by the members. 
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Name of Director

Date of Birth

Qualification

Expertise

Directorship held in
other Companies
(excluding foreign
Companies)

Committee Memberships,
if any, with position

Shareholding in the
Company 

Mrs. Susan Ann Walker 

18th July, 1967

Chartered Accountant from U.K. 

Strong all round finance professional with
varied experience in business planning,
strategic reviews, Investors Relation,
Acquisition, valuations, fund raising (debt
and equity including IPO) and
reconstructions.

Stewart Holl (India) Limited

Amgoorie India Limited 

Elgin Investments & Trading Co. Ltd.

Goodricke Technical & Management
Services Ltd.

Member, Audit Committee of Goodricke
Group Limited

Nil

Mr. Peter John Field  

25th November, 1950

Banker

Indepth experience in the field of
Banking & Finance of a wide range of
Companies in diverse lines of activities
ranging from Tea & other plantation,
banking & engineering, warehousing
and transport etc.

Stewart Holl (India) Ltd.

Amgoorie India Ltd. 

Member, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of Goodricke Group Ltd.

Nil

PARTICULARS RELATING TO DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE APPOINTED / RE-APPOINTED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Fortieth Annual Report and Accounts for the period  ended 31st
March, 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
15 months        

Period ended Year ended
(31.3.2016) (31.12.2014)

(Rs. in millions)

GROSS SALES 7427.03 6001.63
PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEM & TAX (333.43) 290.39
Exceptional Item 370.38 —
Profit before Tax 36.95 290.39
Less: Tax Expense 165.85 68.00

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX (128.90) 222.39
Add:  Profit brought forward from last year 43.61 47.85

(85.29) 270.24
APPROPRIATIONS:
Dividend 86.40 97.20
Tax on Dividend   17.59 19.43
Transfer to General Reserve — 110.00
Transfer from General Reserve 200 —

Balance carried forward 10.72 43.61 

The above Financial Results for the fifteen months period ended 31st March 2016, have been prepared to
comply with Section 2 (41) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence the previous year figures are not
comparable.  

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING YEAR
The Accounts under review are drawn up for fifteen month period ending 31st March 2016.  This change
has been effected in order to align with the definition of financial year as per the provisions of Clause 41 of
Section 2 of the Companies Act 2013.  The Company will revert to a full twelve months accounting year from
1st April 2016 and thereafter. The necessary approval was obtained from the Registrar of Companies, West
Bengal for extension of time for holding this Annual General Meeting vide their order dated 16th May, 2016.  

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review:

a. No Equity shares have been issued with differential voting rights. Hence, no disclosure is required in terms of Rule
4 (4) of the  Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

b. No issue of Sweat Equity Share has been made. Hence, no disclosure is required in terms of Rule 8 (13) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

c. There was no issue of Employee Stock Option. Hence, no disclosure is required in terms of Rule 12 (9) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

d. There was no provision made by the Company for any money for purchase of its own shares by employees or by
trustees for the benefit of employees. Hence, no disclosure is required in terms of Rule 16 (4) of the  Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.
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e. The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Company as on 1st January, 2015 stood  at Rs. 216 million
divided into 21600000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each remained unchanged as on 31st March, 2016.

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE
Due to absence of profit during the financial period the Company has decided to meet the dividend payment
obligation out of the accumulated profits from previous years in compliance with Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable Rules thereto. 

DIVIDEND
Your Directors have recommended a dividend of Rs. 4 per share (40%).  Such dividend, on declaration, will
be paid to those members whose names are recorded in the Register of the Company at the close of business
on 21st July, 2016, subject, however to the provision of Section 126 of the of the Companies Act, 2013. 

OPERATIONS
The total manufactured crop for the Company in all the three regions of operation i.e. Dooars, Darjeeling
and Assam was 21.84 million kgs in 12 months  vis-à-vis 22.09 million kgs. of 2014.  The shortfall was on
account of the early season drought and due to the fact that five of your Dooars gardens were lashed by a
severe hail storm in the month of April resultant of which the harvested crop in those gardens were
drastically reduced.

The outsourced leaf segment also registered marginally lower volumes compared to 2014 on account of the
fact that the Company as a whole resorted to an improved quality profile in manufacture, in order to enhance
price realization and thereby record adequate margin in the operation.

November rainfall, unprecedented in 2013 & 2014 shored up harvest levels towards the end of the year and
enabled some of the gardens who had recorded lower levels of harvest in the first half of the season to
record harvests more in line with the potential of the tea areas.  This combined with the overall improved
quality of manufacture and improvement of recorded price levels of most of the gardens thereby improving
their sale price averages by the end of the year. But what really impinged adversely on the profitability of
the gardens was the quantum jump up to 39% spread over three years in the labour wages post the
negotiated settlement of the fresh labour wage agreement.

The all India tea production as on 31st March, 2016 is 1294 million kgs. (15 months)  in comparison to  1184
million kgs. in 2014 (12 months). 

The markets remained buoyant for good quality teas and the price levels attained by the better quality teas
ensured that a number of gardens switched to quality manufacture eschewing crop.  However,  with some
level of satisfaction that it is recorded here that all gardens of Goodricke Group Limited in Dooars featured in
the top 20 position  in price realization.  Likewise, Thurbo was one of the most sought after marks in Darjeeling
and Orangajuli & Nonaipara occupied positions 6 & 7 in the Orthodox price realization ladder in Assam. 

The markets remained extremely buoyant for Assam Orthodox on account of export demand from Iran and
Germany and the market for Darjeeling Orthodox also remained fairly upbeat for the Goodricke gardens.

The demand for medium and poor teas continued the tepid trends experienced in 2014. Export markets
continued to be selective and it is with some satisfaction that we would record here that Company succeeded
in breaking the "glass ceiling" by exporting one of the Dooars estates produce to UK.  Needless to say the
Company as a whole has enhanced its export levels over the levels attained in 2014.

The Company continued to avail of Tea Board's replanting / rejuvenation subsidy scheme for replanting of
old moribund tea areas post rejuvenation with quality and high yielding clones and biclonal seed stocks.
This has enabled the company to ensure slow yet sustained enhancement of yields in its tea areas along with
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lowering and rejuvenation pruning which is followed by large scale infilling of tea areas in its estates which
ensures yield levels above the economic threshold levels.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There has been no change in any business and all the Divisions of the Company continue to concentrate on
their own business with growth plans in short to medium terms.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the period under review Mr. A. K. Mathur who was a non executive director resigned from the Board
of Directors w.e.f. close of business hours 30th July, 2015. The Board noted his resignation and appreciated
the contribution made by Mr. A. K. Mathur during his association with the Company. 

In terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. S. A. Walker was inducted to the Board as an
additional director in the category of non executive director on and from 30th July, 2015. 

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has appointed the following Key
Managerial Personnel with effect from 1st April 2014.

Mr. A. N. Singh, Managing Director & CEO

Mr. A. Sengupta, Vice President and CFO

Mr. S. Banerjee, Company Secretary

STATEMENT OF DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The declaration required under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act 2013 from the Independent Directors
of the Company confirm that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed in Section 149 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 as well as  per  Listing Regulations, were duly received by the Company. 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERANCE
As per Listing Regulations, a Report on Corporate Governance alongwith the Auditors' Certificate regarding
Compliance of  Corporate Governance are attached as Annexure II and Annexure III  respectively, forming
part of this Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
Your Company being a constituent of Camellia Plc., U.K., is conscious of its social responsibilities and the
environment in which it operates. For several years the Company has increased its welfare activities in the
area  of health and safety, education, environment, Waste management etc. to the people in and around the
tea estates and other establishments of the Company. Since as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
Corporate Social Responsibility has become an obligation under the Act  the Company  has taken up several
specific projects to comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.
The Board of Directors have formed a CSR Committee and adopted a CSR Policy for the Company and 
the same can be accessed at the Company's weblink www/goodricke.com/corporate/corporate-social-
responsibility. The details of the projects undertaken are given in Annexure IV in the form prescribed under
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014.  The CSR Committee of  the Board as on
31st March, 2016 consist of three directors namely, Dr. (Mrs) S. Kaul, Chairperson and Independent Director,
Mr. A. N. Singh, Managing Director and CEO and Mr. K. Sinha, Independent Director. 
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DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS
The Board of Directors met 7 (seven) times during the period  on various dates as given here in below:

Sl. No. Date of the meeting No. of Directors attended the meeting

1. 20th February 2015 4

2. 30th March 2015 5

3. 12th May 2015 4

4. 30th July 2015 6

5. 9th November 2015 3

6. 7th December 2015 6

7. 11th February 2016 6

Further details on Board of Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

a. Audit Committee

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee which comprises of the following Directors :

Sl. No. Name Category of Director Chairman/Members

1. Mr. K. Sinha Independent Chairman 

2. Mr. A. K. Mathur Non-Executive- Non Independent (Resigned)** Member

3. Mr. P. K. Sen Independent Member

4. Mrs. S. A. Walker Non-Executive - Non-Independent * Member

*Appointed as Additional Director by the Board on and from 30th July 2015.

** Resigned with effect from 30th July 2015

The Company has established a vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy which oversees through the
Audit Committee and addresses genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other Directors. The
Company has also made provisions for adequate safeguards against victimisation of  its employees and
Directors who express their concerns. The Chairman Audit Committee can be directly accessed by any
employee for reporting issues which need to be brought to the notice of the Board. The vigil mechanism
/ whistle blower policy of the Company has been uploaded on the website of the Company and can
be accessed at Company's weblink www.goodricke.com/corporate/Goodricke - whistle-blower - policy.

b. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Sl. No. Name Category of Director Chairman/Members

1. Mr. K. Sinha Independent Chairman 

2. Mr. P.J. Field Non-Executive Member

3. Mr. P. K. Sen Independent Member

4. Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kaul Independent Member
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Further details of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

c. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Sl. No. Name Chairperson /Members

1. Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kaul Chairperson

2. Mr. K. Sinha Member

3. Mr. A. N. Singh Member

Further details of Corporate Social Responsibility are available in the Report on Corporate Governance.

The Committee has approved the Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) Policy and the Budget for the
Financial Period 2015 - 16 prepared in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013.  The ear marked funds was fully spent on or before  31st March, 2016.

d. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Sl. No. Name Chairperson/Members

1. Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kaul Chairperson

2. Mr. K. Sinha Member

3. Mr. A. N. Singh Member

Further details of Stakeholders Relationship Committee are available in the Report on Corporate Governance. 

e. Risk Management Committee 

Your Board at its meeting dated 14th November, 2014, has constituted the following Risk Management
Committee of the Board as per Listing Regulations. 

Sl. No. Name Chairman/Members

1. Mr. K. Sinha Chairman 

2. Mr. P.K. Sen Member

3. Mr. A. N. Singh Member

4. Mr. S. Banerjee Member

Further details of Risk Management Committee are available in the Report on Corporate Governance.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board formulated and adopted a Board Evaluation Framework for evaluating the performance of the
Board as a whole, Committees of the Board and also performance of the Individual Directors.

As per the said Evaluation Framework, the Board evaluated the performance of the Board, its Committees
and the Individual Directors for the period  2015-16.  The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors based on the criteria such as attendance
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and participation  in the meetings, preparedness on the issues to be discussed, suggestions on how risk
factors may be handled etc.  In addition, the chairman was also evaluated on the above aspects by the
independent directors. 

The Independent Directors also carried out the performance evaluation in terms of Part VII (3) (c) of
Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 in their Meeting held on 30th March 2015.

ANNUAL RETURN 
The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 forming a part of this Report,
attached as Annexure V.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement of Clause ( c) of sub section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 your
Directors confirm that :

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, for the financial period ended 31st March 2016, the applicable
accounting standards has been followed alongwith the proper explanations relating to material
departure, if any. 

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company for  the financial period ended 31st March 2016 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORT
M/s. Lovelock and Lewes, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
in the last Annual General Meeting held on 30th March 2015. Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 contains
the provisions related to appointment and retirement of Auditors. In view of the provisions of the said
section the existing Statutory Auditors M/s. Lovelock & Lewes, Chartered Accountants were entitled to
continue as the Statutory Auditors of the Company upto 31st March 2016.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 23rd  May, 2016 recommended appointment of M/s. Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants in place of M/s. Lovelock & Lewes as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company in compliance to the provision set out in Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made
thereunder. 

COST AUDITORS

In terms of Sub Section (3) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, M/s. Shome & Banerjee, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000001) has been
appointed by the Board of Director in its meeting held on 23rd May 2016, as the Cost Auditor of the



Company for the financial year 2016-17 based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. The
remuneration to be ratified by the Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. A. K. Roy & Co.,  Practicing Company Secretaries
FCS 5684, CP No. 4557 had been appointed Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial period
ended 31st March, 2016. The report of the Secretarial Auditors is enclosed as Annexure- VI to this report.
The Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer, which requires
any further comments or explanations.

PARTICULARS OF COMPLIANCE OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

The  related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and also on arm's
length basis in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with
Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. which may have potential conflict of the interest with
the Company at large. All related party transactions are presented to the Audit Committee and the Board, if
required for approval. Omnibus approval is obtained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive
in nature. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company's
website at the web link: www.goodricke.com/policy-on-related-party-transactions.

Accordingly,  disclosures of related party transactions in terms of Clause (h) of sub section (3) of Section 134
of Companies Act  2013  read with Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule 2014 in Form AOC - 2, is
not applicable.  Transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting Standard are disclosed
in the notes to the accounts annexed to the financial statements.  

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are
covered in the notes of the Financial Statement for the period ended 31st March, 2016.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has a large work force employed at the tea estates. There were no major disruptions of work
at the garden or any other establishment of the Company during the period under review. The correct
recruitment practices are in place to attract best talent. Industrial Relations at all the units remained
satisfactory.  

The total remuneration drawn by MD & CEO and other  Key Managerial Personnel form part of Extract of
the Annual Return in Form MGT - 9 to this Reports enclosed as Annexure V.

In terms of requirements of Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has formed Internal Complaints Committee for its
workplaces. During the year, no complaint regarding sexual harassment was received by the said Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

In terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations the Company has developed
and implemented the Risk Management Policy. The Risk Management Committee of the Board reviews the
same periodically.

GOODRICKE GROUP LTD

16



17

The Company has taken adequate measures to mitigate various risk encountered. In the opinion of the Board
there is no such risk which may threaten the present existence of the Company. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of managerial remuneration, Directors'
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing  Regulations is attached to this report as Annexure
VII.

The details of Programme for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company , nature of Industry
and other related matters are available on the weblink www.goodricke.com/corporate/ familiarisation-
program-for-independent-directors

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
There is no significant or material order passed by any Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company's operations in future.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Your Company has adequate Internal Financial Control System at all levels of Management and they are
reviewed from time to time. The Internal Audit is carried out in house as well as by firm of Chartered
Accountants. The Audit Committee of the Board looks into Auditor's review which is deliberated upon and
corrective action taken, wherever required.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
Your Company transferred such amount of dividend lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years
from the date of such dividend become due for payment to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public in terms of provisions contained in Chapter V of
the Companies Act, 2013, or in terms of corresponding provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee's remuneration and other particulars
or details of employees pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are attached to this Report
as Annexure VIII.

MANAGEMENT  DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As per Listing Regulations Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached as Annexure I forming
part of this report. 
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(a)   Conservation of energy

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

(i) The steps taken or impact on
conservation of energy

(ii) The steps taken by the company
for utilizing alternate sources of
energy

(iii) The capital investment on energy
conservation equipments

1) Online Conveyorisation of manufacturing Processes which
resulted in reduction of idle running of machineries, less time
consumption thereby saving energy and increasing efficiency.

2) Installation of Coal Ratio Controller to reduce consumption of
Coal. Approx. 20% saving of coal achieved. 

3) Installation of new 7 Pass High Efficiency Coal Heater in New
VFBD to dry Teas.  To reduce coal consumption.

4) Installation of low wattage LED Lights, to reduce power
consumption. 

5) Installation of Rain Water Harvesting System to reduce pumping of
ground water.  To reduce power consumption. 

6) Installation of High Efficiency CTC Roller Sharpening Equipment
to increase speed of sharpening and thus reduce power cost.

1) Proposed upgradation of 100 KW Hydel Project at Thurbo Tea
Garden.

2) Use of Firewood in Boiler at Aibheel Tea Garden  and Gandrapara
Tea Garden to reduce consumption of Coal.

3) Installation of CPC Water Heating System at ITP. Successful
installation and implementation of this solar power system helped
the Company to be rewarded with an appreciation award,
presented by the Hon'ble Coal & Power Minister, Shri Puyish Goel
at New Delhi on 29th April, 2016.  Your Company was the only
Company in the entire Tea Industry to be presented with this award. 

i) Proposed upgradation of 100 KW Hydel Project in Thurbo T.G. =
Rs. 5 million 

ii) Installation of Solar Panel water heater in ITP = Rs. 10 million
iii) Installation of LED lights to replace LCD lights = Rs. 3 million

1) Dependence on Hydel Project to run our Factories.
2) Dependence on Solar Water Heating system to reduce

dependence on conventional Energy.
3) Usage of Low wattage LED lights in place of high wattage CFLs.
4) Conversion of Coal Firing system into Gas Firing System using LPG

Cylinders in Darjeeling gardens.
5) Use of Hygienic Ucrete Flooring System .
6) Online new conveyorisation of flow processes.
7) Introduction of online Green Tea Panning system to produce

Green Tea at Leesh River Tea Garden.
8) Introduction of Variable Frequency Drier System in Fluid Bed

Driers to save power

(i) The efforts made towards
technology absorption

(b)   Technology absorption 
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(c)    Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo

During the period, the foreign exchange outgo  was Rs. 58.71 million  and the foreign exchange earning was
Rs. 1000.28 million.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Your Directors confirm that there are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position
of the company which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the company and the date of
this report

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for employees at all levels, who have contributed to the
growth and performance of your Company.

Your Directors also thank the business associates, shareholders and other stakeholders of the Company for
their continued support.

1) Reduction of Power Cost in Thurbo Tea Garden by 25%.
2) Due to online conveyorisation, Factory achieved higher Worker's

outturn, which ultimately led to reduction in Cost of Production.
3) With the introduction of Boiler and Coal  Ratio Controller, uniform

temperature could be maintained which resulted in better quality
of produce and reduction in coal consumption. 

4) With the introduction of VFD in VFBD, the power cost has been
reduced in firing of Teas.

5) In our prestigious Instant Tea Plant, using of Solar parabolic panels
has helped us to cut down on Coal Consumption by approx. 25%

N I L 

Revenue Rs. 16.05 million and Capital Rs. 1.94 million

(ii) The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import
substitution

(iii) In case of imported technology
(imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year).
(a) the details of technology

imported
(b) the year of import;
(c) whether the technology been

fully absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas

where absorption has not
taken place, and the reasons
thereof

(iv) the expenditure incurred on
Research and Development

On behalf of the Board
A. N. Singh

Managing Director & CEO 
S. Kaul

K. Sinha
Place : Kolkata P.K. Sen
Dated : 23rd  May, 2016 Directors



GOODRICKE GROUP LTD

20

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The world crop increased over 2014 calendar year by 0.45%, from 5177.19 million kgs. to 5200.32 million
kgs. The major increase came from China where crop increase was recorded by 135 million kgs (6.40%).
Kenyan crop declined from 445.10 million kgs. to 399.21 million kgs. Sri Lankan crop also declined by 9
million kgs. (2.66%). Against this back drop India's crop declined by 16 million kgs. (1.32%).  It would be
prudent to mention that small growers are now contributing approximately 36% of India's total produce. It
is also noteworthy that decline in crop has come mostly from organized sector. 

The overall tea consumption as per figure of International tea committee stands at 4944 million kgs. as
against the production of 5200 million kgs, generating a surplus of 256 million kgs.   

SEGMENTWISE OR PRODUCTWISE PERFORMANCE

Tea crop is entirely dependent on weather conditions. In early part of the year, climate changes are more
visible in teas with increase in rainless months. Rainfall from November to March is crucial for tea crop which
has also declined significantly in past few years. 

Company crop also declined by 1.18%, lower than the organized sector decline in North East India. It is
worth mentioning that the gardens are covered upto 90% by irrigation in both Assam & Dooars. 

BRANDED TEA BUSINESS

The Branded Tea business showed excellent results with a volume growth of 11% and a value growth of
12% over the previous year.  Your Company continued to maintain its leadership position in Madhya Pradesh
with its Goodricke Chai brand. In Kolkata, Goodricke Roasted remains the market leader in Darjeeling
segment. Barnesbeg Organic Tea and the newly introduced flavoured tea bags are showing encouraging
signs. 

Over the years, investments made in brand building are now showing results. It is our endeavour to continue
to invest in the brands as we believe that this is the way forward.  Along with this, we have invested in
strengthening distribution channel and improving our service in trade. As a result, we have in this year
achieved a growth of over 40% in coverage over the previous year. 

EXPORTS

The export segment had a very satisfactory year with growth of 44% recorded in terms of quantity.  Total
export was at 5.27 million kgs. against 3.67 million kgs. last year, the bulk increase coming from export to
Iran. The turnover of export was 1428.14 million rupees against 999.60 million rupees in 2014.

INSTANT TEA PLANT (ITP)

There was a slight dip in export of Instant tea, particularly due to weak economic activity in importing
countries as well as devaluation of currencies in those countries which made the import costlier.  The plant
is yet to achieve full capacity as Instant tea growth has slowed down globally. However plant's financial
results were quite satisfactory. 

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ANNEXURE ‘I’ 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ANNEXURE ‘I’ (Contd.)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

OPPORTUNITY AND THREATS

The Global tea production has remained almost stagnant during the last couple of years with a slight
variations depending on weather conditions. India is the largest producer of black tea as well as the largest
consumer in the world.  

Currently India produces approximately 23% of the total production and consumes approximately  20% of
such produce. In the last decades India has come down to lower range in the export ladder  from being No.
1 global exporter due to stiff competition from Srilanka, Kenya and China.

RISK AND CONCERN 

Tea is an agricultural product and weather therefore plays an important role in tea production. For the last
several years the climatic condition have  been very erratic and to combat such conditions the Company has
made substantial investments in irrigation. Further problems being faced in the industry are issues such as
increase in labour wages, high social cost, increase in energy  costs and other inputs cost, shortage of labour
to harvest crop due to migration being  some of the aspects which cause concern.

As a risk mitigation initiative your company has adopted a Risk Management Policy and implied the same
at the tea estates and at the Head Office of the Company. 

OUTLOOK

The review of the global scenario of tea in terms of area, production, yield, export and import indicate
overall increase in the quality of tea in the world market over the last two decades and the trend is on the
upswing. Strategies should be adopted to meet the challenges in global market. Value addition and
diversification to form a wide range of tea production need to be developed for balancing the supply
demand chain.  Through implementation of this, the global tea industry can think of sustainability in future
keeping in mind the climate change across the globe. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company's internal control system and the level of management are reviewed from time to time to
implement information  where required.

The Internal Audit is carried out to  a large extent by Professional  firms of Chartered Accountants alongwith
the Group Chief Internal Auditor.

The Audit Committee of the Board looks into the audit reviews which is deliberated upon and corrective
action taken wherever required. 

FINANCIALS WITH RESPECT TO  OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance of the Company with respect to operational parameters has declined during the
period under review due to wage increase in tea estates.  Branded tea division has seen a better performance
through increase in volume of sales.  Export sales have also shown growth in volume.  

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Tea  Industry is a labour  intensive industry.  The Company employs over 24400 personnel at its tea estate
and other establishments in the country.  

Employee relations at all the units remained satisfactory and the Company would like to record the
dedication and support received from the employees at all levels in maintaining smooth production and
manufacture of tea from all the Tea Estates during the said period. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing  the  Company's objectives,
projections, estimates and expectations may be "forward looking statements" within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual  results may differ  materially from those expressed or
implied due to factors beyond control.

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT - ANNEXURE ‘I’ (Contd.)
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

On behalf of the Board

A. N. Singh
Managing Director & CEO 

S. Kaul
K. Sinha

Place : Kolkata P.K. Sen
Dated : 23rd  May, 2016 Directors
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ANNEXURE II TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Listing Regulations Code of Corporate Governance which the Company has complied with as follows:

1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance:

The Company's core business is cultivation and production of tea and it is among the top three producers in
India.

The Company strives to produce teas of premium quality, which are acceptable to the discerning world market.
This particularly applies to production from Darjeeling, Dooars and Assam gardens.

Likewise, the Company endeavours to care for all its employees by providing medical, educational and welfare
facilities way beyond the basic requirements.

The Company's overall philosophy is excellence in all spheres of its operations.

2. Board of Directors

2.1 Composition and Category of Directors

The Board is headed by Non - Executive Chairman, Mr. P. J. Field and comprises of persons who are expert in their
respective fields. At present, 50% of the Directors on the Board are Non-Executive Independent Directors.
Particulars as on 31st March, 2016 are given below:

Director DIN Category of Directors

Mr. P. J. Field 02634920 Chairman - Non Executive

Mr. A. N. Singh 00620929 Managing Director & CEO

Mrs. S. A. Walker* 07225692 Non Executive

Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kaul 00150593 Independent

Mr. K. Sinha 00123811 Independent

Mr. P. K. Sen 00160160 Independent 

* Appointed as Additional Director by the Board on 30th July 2015

2.2 Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings held during the period  and  the last AGM.

During the period  under review, 7 Board Meetings were held on 20th February, 2015, 30th March 2015, 12th May
2015, 30th July 2015, 9th November 2015, 7th December 2015 and 11th February 2016.

The last AGM was held on 30th March, 2015.
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Details of attendance:
Director No. of Board Whether attended

Meetings Attended last AGM

Mr. P.J. Field 4 Yes

Mr. A.N.Singh 6 Yes

*Mrs. S. A. Walker 3 No

Dr. (Mrs.) S.Kaul 7 Yes

Mr. K.Sinha 7 Yes

Mr. P.K.Sen 7 Yes

** Mr. A. K. Mathur - No

*   Mrs. S. A. Walker joined the Board w.e.f. 30th July, 2015

**  Mr. A. K. Mathur resigned from the Board w.e.f 30th July, 2015

2.3 Separate Meeting of Independent Directors

A separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 30th March, 2015, without the
attendance of Non-Independent Directors. The following matters were inter-alia considered in the Meeting:

2.3.1 Reviewing the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

2.3.2 Reviewing the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of executive
directors and non executive directors;

2.3.3 To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

2.4 Number of other Boards or Board Committees in which he/she is a member or Chairperson :

None of the Directors acts as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies. Further, none of the
Director act as a member of more than 10 committees or act as a Chairman of more than 5 committees across all
Public Limited Companies in which he is a Director.

The details of the Directorships, Chairmanships and the Committee memberships in other Companies (excluding
Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Section 8 Companies) held by the Directors as on 31st March,
2016, are given below:

No of Companies Board Committees 

Chairman Member

Mr. P.J. Field 4 — —

Mr. A. N. Singh 4 2 —

Mrs. S. A. Walker 2 — —

Mr. K. Sinha 1 — —

Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kaul — — —

Mr. P. K. Sen 1 — —

ANNEXURE II TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Director Member of Board



25

2.5 Induction and Training of Board Members:

On appointment, the Independent Director is given a Letter of Appointment setting out, in detail, the terms of
appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. Each newly appointed Independent Director
is taken through a formal induction programme including the presentation from the Managing Director as well as
various Business Heads on the Company's production, marketing, finance and other important aspects. The
Company Secretary briefs the Director about his legal and regulatory responsibilities as a Director. The induction
for Independent Directors include interactive sessions with Executive Directors, Business and Functional Heads,
Visit to the Tea Estates/ plant/ site etc.

2.6 Evaluation of the Board's Performance:

During the period, the Board evaluated its performance as well as that of its Committees and individual Directors,
including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was carried out covering various aspects of the Boards
functioning such as composition of the Board and Committees, experience and competencies, performance of
specific duties and obligations, governance issues etc. Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance
of individual Directors including the Non- Executive Chairman, who were evaluated on parameters such as
attendance, contribution at the meetings and otherwise, independent judgement, etc.

2.7 Code of Conduct:

The Company  has laid down a Code of Conduct for  its  Board Members and all the employees in the Senior
Management grade of the Company which is available on the Company's website. 

All the Board Members and Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the code. A declaration
to that effect signed by the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer is attached and forms part of this Annual
Report.

3. Audit Committee:

3.1 Brief Description and composition

The Audit committee comprises of three non-executive Directors of whom the Chairman and one member are
Independent Directors.  The Committee was first constituted in April 1997.  The committee has been meeting at
regular intervals.  The Chairman and other members of the Audit committee has in-depth knowledge in the areas
of Finance and Accounts.

The Audit Committee of the Company is comprised of the following Directors :- 

Sl. No. Name Category of Director Chairman/Members

1. Mr. K. Sinha Independent Chairman

2. Mrs. S. A. Walker Non Executive Member

3. Mr. P. K. Sen Independent Member

3.2 Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee broadly covers Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and are briefly described below:

ANNEXURE II TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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3.2.1 To oversee the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosures of its financial information and
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

3.2.2 To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the Statutory Auditors, Cost
Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company;

3.2.3 Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors;

3.2.4 Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement in  the Board's Report in
terms of clause (c) of Sub-Section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by Management.

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.

g. Qualifications in the draft Audit Report, if any.

3.2.5 To review with management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for taking the
same on record;

3.2.6 Reviewing, with the Management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document/ prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board
to take steps in the matter;

3.2.7 To review and monitor the Auditor's Independence, performance and effectiveness of the Audit Process;

3.2.8 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

3.2.9 Scrutiny of Inter-corporate loans and Investments;

3.2.10 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

3.2.11 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

3.2.12 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems;

3.2.13 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of
internal audit;

3.2.14 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

3.2.15 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;

3.2.16 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

ANNEXURE II TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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3.2.17 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to shareholders (in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

3.2.18 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower/ Vigil mechanism;

3.2.19 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

3.2.20 The Audit committee also reviews the following information:

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

b) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
Management;

c) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

e) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor.

3.3 Meetings and attendance during the period

During the period under review, 6 Meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 20th February, 2015, 12th May,
2015, 30th July, 2015, 9th November 2015, 7th December, 2015 and 11th February, 2016

The composition and attendance of the members at the Audit Committee Meetings are as follows:

Name No. of Audit Committee
Meetings Attended

Mr. K. Sinha 6

Mrs. S. A. Walker 3

Mr. P. K. Sen 6

The Company Secretary acts as the Ex-Officio Secretary to the Committee. Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal
Auditors attend the Meeting whenever required. The Chairman, Managing Director and other Senior Executives are also
invited to attend and deliberate in the Meetings.

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

4.1    Brief description and Composition :

The Board has duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the said committee comprises of one
Non-Executive and three Independent Directors as follows:

Sl. No. Name Category of Director Chairman/Members

1. Mr. K. Sinha Independent Chairman

2. Mr. P. J. Field Non Executive Member

3. Mr. P. K. Sen Independent Member

4. Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kaul Independent Member

ANNEXURE II TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)
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4.2 Terms of reference :

The Committee is empowered :-

4.2.1 To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees;

4.2.2  To formulate criteria for evaluation/ performance appraisal of Independent Directors and the Board;

4.2.3  To devise policy on Board diversity;

4.2.4  To Identify and assess potential individuals with respect to their expertise, skills, attributes, personal and
professional standing for appointment and re-appointment as Directors / Independent Directors on the Board
and as Key Managerial Personnel.

4.3 Remuneration Policy :

The Company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors and Senior Management Employees as formulated by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee detailed hereunder:

4.3.1   The remuneration of an individual shall depend upon  the following parameters concerning an individual:

a) Age,

b) Qualifications,

c)  Experience,

d)  Core Competence,

e)  Career advancement,

f)  Special Skill, if any

g)  Performance in the context of the duties and responsibilities assigned,

h)  Industry Criteria,

i)  Other relevant factors.

4.3.2  The level and composition of remuneration for each individual shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate the person concerned, whether as Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the quality
required to run the Company successfully;

4.3.3 Relationship of remuneration to performance should be clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks as may be set up from time to time; 

4.4 Meeting and attendance during the period  :

During the period  under review, three Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on
20th February, 2015, 30th July, 2015 and 7th December, 2015.

Name No. of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Meetings Attended

Mr. K.Sinha 3

Mr. P.J. Field 2

Dr. (Mrs.) S.Kaul 3

Mr. P.K.Sen 3

ANNEXURE II TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE



29

4.5 Details of remuneration to all the directors :

Minimum Remuneration (ascertained based on actual expenses/valuation as per Income Tax Rules) as per Terms
of Service,  paid to Managing Directors during the period  2015-16 :

Name of Director Salary and Commission Contribution to Value of Total
Allowance P.F. and Other Perquisites

Funds

Mr. A.N.Singh, 9975000 600000 5896181 2124920 *18596101
Managing Director & CEO

*Rs. 3639983 representing contribution to PF, Pension Fund and leave encashment benefit included above but not
considered for determination of limit as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 

1) Mr. A. N. Singh
Service contract : 01.01.2015 to 31.12.2017
Notice period : Six months
Severance Fee : Not Applicable

Sitting Fees and Commission paid/payable to the Non-Executive Directors during the period 2015-16 and
their shareholding in the Company are as under :

Non-Executive Directors Board Fees Committee Fees Total Commission No. of 
shares held

Dr. (Mrs.) S.Kaul 105000 112000 217000 NA —

Mr. K.Sinha 105000 112000 217000 NA —

Mr. P.K.Sen 105000 72000 177000 NA —

Note: The above Fees excludes Service Tax.

There are no stock option plans of the Company.

5. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
This Committee is responsible for the satisfactory redressal of investors' complaints and recommends measures for
overall improvement in the quality of investor services.

The Committee consists of two Independent Directors and the Managing Director & CEO, as under :

Sl. No. Name Category of Director Chairperson/ Members

1 Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kaul Independent Chairperson

2 Mr. K. Sinha Independent Member

3 Mr. A.N. Singh Managing Director & CEO Member
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Name and designation of Compliance Officer :

Mr. S. Banerjee, Company Secretary

During the period  under review, this Committee had 20 meetings held on 5th January 2015, 16th January 2015,
27th January 2015, 17th February 2015, 21st March 2015, 17th April 2015, 30th April 2015, 15th May 2015, 30th May
2015, 9th June 2015, 23rd June 2015, 6th August 2015, 31st August 2015, 30th September  2015, 15th October 2015,
6th November 2015, 3rd December 2015, 14th December 2015, 11th February 2016 and  4th March 2016.

The detailed particulars of Investors' Complaints handled by the Company and its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
during the period  are as under :

a) No. of complaints received from Shareholders 2

b) No. of complaints received from Stock Exchange/SEBI NIL

c) No. of complaints not resolved/no action taken NIL

d) No. of pending Share transfers as on 23rd  May, 2016 NIL 

Shareholders' grievances are resolved expeditiously.  There are no grievance pending as on date. 

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE
In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, the CSR Committee of the Board has been constituted as follows :

Sl. No. Name Category of Director Chairperson/Members

1 Dr.(Mrs.) S. Kaul Independent Chairperson

2 Mr. K. Sinha Independent Member

3 Mr. A.N. Singh Managing Director & CEO Member

The role of the CSR committee inter-alia includes :

a) To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the
activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in Clause (a) and

c) To monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

The Committee has framed and the Board has approved the Company's Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
relating to the CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Companies
Act, 2013 and the expenditure thereon, excluding activities undertaken in the normal course of business of
the Company. The said CSR policy is available at the company's weblink www.goodricke.com/corporate/
Corporate-Social-Responsibility.  The details about the policy  developed and  implemented  by  the Company
on CSR  initiatives undertaken during the  period  are enclosed as Annexure-IV to the Board's Report, forming
part of this Annual Report. 

During the period under review, the CSR Committee met twice i.e. on 30th July 2015 and 7th December 2015. 
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7. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee. The Committee is required to lay down the
procedures to inform to the Board about the risk assessment and minimization procedures and the Board shall be
responsible for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan of the Company.

The composition of the Committee is as follows :-

Sl. No. Name Category of Director Chairperson/ Members

1 Mr. K. Sinha Independent Chairman

2 Mr. P. K. Sen Independent Member

3 Mr. A.N. Singh Managing Director & CEO Member

4 Mr. S. Banerjee Company Secretary Member

During the period under review, the Risk Management Committee met 6 times with the Audit Committee to discuss
related matters. 

The major risks and concerns being faced by various business segments of the Company are discussed in the Report
on Management Discussion and Analysis, forming part of this Annual Report.

8. General Body Meetings:
Location and time where last three AGMs were held: 

Date Location Time

20th April, 2013 Eastern Zonal Cultural Centre 
1B, 201, Sector- III, Salt Lake City, 10.00 AM

Kolkata - 700 106

11th April, 2014 - Do - 10.00 AM

30th March 2015 - Do - 10.00 AM 

In the last Annual General Meeting held on 30th March, 2015 all the resolutions were adopted by electronic voting. 

No special Resolution was passed in the Annual General Meetings in 2013, 2014 and 2015.  No resolution proposed
through postal ballot. 

9. OTHER DISCLOSURES
9.1 Related party transactions :

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions: 

The Company has not entered into any transactions of material nature, with its Promoters, the Directors or the
Management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company. 

The names of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period have been disclosed in
Note 37 to the Financial Statements for the period  ended 31st March, 2016.

The Board, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, has adopted Company's Policy on Related Party
Transactions, at its meeting held on 14th November 2014. The said policy is available at Company's weblink
www.goodricke.com/corporate/policy-on-related-party-transactions 
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9.2 No penalties / strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority
for noncompliance of any laws on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years.

9.3 Whistle Blower Policy - Vigil Mechanism :

The Company has duly established vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company's code of conducts or ethics policy. The Audit
Committee of the Board monitors and oversees such Vigil Mechanism of the Company. It is also confirmed that no
personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee during the period under review.

A detailed policy related to the Whistle Blower - Vigil Mechanism is available at Company's weblink
www.goodricke.com/corporate/goodricke-whistle-blower-policy .

10. NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

10.1 Auditors Report: There has been no qualification/ adverse remark by the Auditors in their Audit Report for
the period.

10.2 Other non-mandatory requirements shall be adopted as and when considered appropriate.

11. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The CEO and CFO placed the required certificate before the Board certifying, inter alia, the authenticity of the
Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the period  ended 31st March, 2016. All other mandatory
requirements have been duly complied with, to the extent applicable.

12. DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. All
the Directors and Senior Management personnel affirm compliance with the said Code of Conduct on an annual
basis. The Code of Conduct has been posted on the website of the Company, www.goodricke.com. A declaration
of this effect signed by the Managing Director & CEO is given as the end of this report.

13. CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
Securities and Exchange Board of India, vide its notification dated 15th January, 2015, has notified SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, to enforce with effect from 120th day from the date of its notification. In terms
of the said regulation, Company has formulated Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading. The Board has
adopted both the Codes at its meeting held on 12th May, 2015.

In terms of the regulation, Board has appointed Mr. S. Banerjee, Company Secretary, as the  Compliance Officer
under the Code to deal with dissemination and disclosures of unplublished price sensitive information.  The said
regulation is available at company's weblink www.goodricke.com/corporate/prohibition-of-insider-trading.

14. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

14.1 Quarterly results and the half-yearly results are published in leading newspapers such as Business Standard and
Aajkal (Bengali) and posted in the Website of the Company, www.goodricke.com . The Shareholding Pattern at the
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end of each quarter is also posted on the said Website. The Financial Results as well as the Shareholding Pattern
are uploaded on the website of Bombay Stock Exchange.

14.2 Company's e-mail address: goodricke@goodricke.com; 

14.3 Management discussion and Analysis Report in an Annexure to the Directors' Report.

14.4 No presentation was made to any Institutional Investor or Analyst during the period.

15. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
15.1 AGM date, time and venue :

Thursday, the 28th July, 2016 at 10:00 A.M. 
Eastern Zonal Cultural Centre 
1B, 201, Sector- III, Salt Lake City,
Kolkata - 700 106

15.2 Financial calendar for 2016 :

The Financial Year of the Company is April to March.

Publication of Results will be as  follows:

Period Approval by the Board of Directors

Unaudited first quarter financial results August, 2016

Unaudited second quarter financial results November, 2016

Unaudited third quarter financial results February 2017

Audited Annual Results May 2017

15.3 Book Closure period :

Friday, the 22nd  July, 2016 to Thursday, the 28th July, 2016 (both days inclusive)

15.4 Listing on Stock Exchange 

The Company's securities are listed at :

BSE Ltd.
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Listing Fees as prescribed have been paid to the aforesaid Stock Exchange upto the Financial Year 2016-17.

Scrip Code :
Stock Exchange Scrip Code 500166
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15.5 Stock Price Data:
Year 2015-16 (Rs.)

Month The Bombay 
Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)

High Low
January 2015 162.75 145.05
February 2015 157.90 132.10
March 2015 164.20 140.50
April 2015 175.90 145.00
May 2015 159.00 136.20
June 2015 141.80 127.00
July 2015 152.90 130.10
August 2015 165.60 133.20
September 2015 146.00 132.00
October 2015 154.00 136.90
November 2015 202.50 136.30
December 2015 219.80 167.00
January 2016 219.80 165.00
February 2016 191.50 152.20
March 2016 177.50 156.20
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15.6 Stock Performance:
Company's Share Price in relation to BSE Sensex:
(January 2015  to March 2016)
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15.7 Share Transfer System:
The Company's shares are compulsorily traded in the demat form with effect from 21st March 2000.  All transfers
are routed through the respective Accounts maintained with the Depository Participants (DPs) of the Investor. 
Code No. allotted by NSDL/CDSL: (ISIN) INE 300A01016

15.8   Registrars and Share Transfer Agents :
CB Management Services Private Limited, Kolkata are acting as the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, including
Depository Registrars for the Equity Shares of the Company.

15.9 Dematerialisation of Shares:
As on 31st March, 2016, 21174480 Nos. of Equity Shares, representing 98.03.%  of the Equity Capital have been
held in dematerialised form with NSDL and CDSL.

15.10. Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2016

15.10 (i) Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2016

Range 
(No. of Shares) No.of Shareholders % of shareholders No.of shares held % of  Shares
1 to 500 12999 90.98 1505768 6.97

501 to 1000 633 4.43 490790 2.27
1001 to 2000 308 2.16 460738 2.13
2001 to 3000 122 0.85 307051 1.42
3001 to 4000 45 0.31 161602 0.75
4001 to 5000 52 0.36 246111 1.14
5001 to 10000 76 0.53 554899 2.57
10001 to 50000 39 0.27 713119 3.30
50001-100000 5 0.03 355851 1.65
And Above 8 0.06 16804071 77.81
Total 14287 100.00 21600000 100.00

(ii) Shareholding pattern as at 31st March 2016
Category No. of No. of % of 

Shareholders Shares held Shareholding
Foreign Promoter (Body Corporates) 2 15984000 74.00
FI/Banks* 11 2115 0.01
Mutual Fund 9 1735 0.01
FII/Foreign Bank 2 2550 0.01
Bodies Corporate 271 833323 3.86
Directors/Relatives 1 180 0.00
Resident Individual (Upto Rs. 2 lakhs) 13846 3697071 17.12
Resident Individual (Above Rs. 2 lakhs) 13 779113 3.61
Non-Resident Indians 87 117884 0.55
Clearing Member/Corporates 45 182029 0.84

GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 14287 21600000 100.00
* FI includes Insurance Company and other Banks
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Shareholding Pattern Total Number of Equity Shares 21600000 100%

74 % of Shares held by Promoter Group Number of shares held by Promoter Group* 15984000 74%

26 % of Shares held by public Number of Shares held by Public 5616000 26%

* Not pledged or encumbered in any manner

15.11 Plant Locations:
The Company owns seventeen Tea Gardens each having its own processing factory, one Instant Tea Plant and four
Tea Blending Unit.
DOOARS (NORTH BENGAL) - IN JALPAIGURI DISTRICT

Aibheel
Chalouni
Chulsa
Danguajhar
Gandrapara
Hope
Jiti
Kumargram
Lakhipara
Leesh River
Meenglas
Sankos

ASSAM - IN UDALGURI DISTRICT (BTAD)
Nonaipara
Orangajuli

DARJEELING DISTRICT
Badamtam
Barnesbeg
Thurbo

Note: Particulars of area under Tea, Crop & others given later in the Report.
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INSTANT TEA PLANT - IN JALPAIGURI DISTRICT
At Aibheel, Dooars

COMPANY HAS GOT FOUR BLENDING UNITS AS FOLLOWS 
1. Welcome Packaging & Blending Unit, Kolkata
2. Diamondpore Blending Unit, Aibheel, Dooars
3. Central Packaging Unit, Dewas, Madhya Pradesh
4. Unity Tea Warehouse & Blending, Kolkata

15.12 Address for correspondence:
(Registrars & Share Transfer Agents & Depository Registrar)

C.B.Management Services Pvt. Ltd.
P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata - 700 019
Tel:  4011 6700/715/724/729
Email:  rta@cbmsl.com

Note:  In case of continuing difficulty, the Compliance Officer at the Registered Office to be intimated at 
e-mail: subrata@goodricke.com

Compliance Officer
Mr. S. Banerjee
Goodricke Group Limited
‘Camellia House'
14 Gurusaday Road
Kolkata - 700 019
Tel : 2287 3067/2287 8737
Fax No.: 2287 2577/ 2287 7089
Email : subrata@goodricke.com

On behalf of the Board
A. N. Singh

Managing Director & CEO
S. Kaul

K. Sinha
Place : Kolkata P.K. Sen
Date : 23rd May, 2016 Directors
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

We, A.N. Singh, Managing Director & CEO and A. Sengupta, Vice President & CFO certify that :-

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the period ended 31st March, 2016 and to
the best of our knowledge and belief:

i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the period ended
31st March 2016  are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting.
Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware have been disclosed
to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d) i) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the period under
reference;

ii) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the period requiring disclosure in the
notes to the financial statements; and

iii) We are not aware of any instance during the period of significant fraud with involvement therein of the
management or any employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial
reporting.

Place : Kolkata A.N. Singh A. Sengupta
Dated : 23rd May, 2016 Managing Director & CEO Vice President & CFO

ANNUAL CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 34 (3) READ WITH PART D OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

DECLARATION  

As required under Regulation 34 (3) read with part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, I hereby declare that all Members of the Board of Directors of the Company and the
Senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company
for the period ended March 31, 2016. 

Place : Kolkata A. N. Singh
Dated : 23rd May 2016 Managing Director & CEO 
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AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To  

The Members of
Goodricke Group Limited
"Camellia House"
14, Gurusaday Road
Kolkata - 700 019

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Goodricke Group Limited (the

"Company"), for the period ended 31st March, 2016, as stipulated in Regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27

and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as

"SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our

examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by

the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an

expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing

Regulations, 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Prabal Kr Sarkar
Partner

Membership No. 052340
For LOVELOCK & LEWES

Place: Kolkata Firm Registration No. 301056E
Date: May 23, 2016 Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE III TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS



GOODRICKE GROUP LTD

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES / INITIATIVES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act read with Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014]

40

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy,  including
overview of projects or programmes proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy
and projects or programmes.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

3. Average net profit of the company for last  three financial years

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of  the amount as
in item 3 above)

5.  Details of CSR activities/projects undertaken during the year :
a) total amount to be spent for the financial year  
b) amount un-spent, if any 
c) manner in which the amount spent during financial year

The Company has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and it  is placed on the
Company's website  and the weblink for the same is
www.goodricke.com/corporate/corporate social responsibility
policy 

i) Dr.(Mrs.)  S. Kaul, Chairperson (Independent Director)
ii) Mr. K. Sinha, Member (Independent Director)
iii) Mr. A.N. Singh, Member (Managing Director & CEO)

Rs. 352.02 million

Rs. 7.04 million

Rs. 7.04 million
-

The manner in which the amount spent is given below :-

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. CSR Project/activity Sector in Projects/ Amount outlay Amount spent on the Cumulative Amount Spent
No. identified which the Programmes 1. Local (budget) project/ programme spend upto : Direct/

Project is area/others project/ (Rs. In million) the reporting through
covered 2.Specify the state/ programme period implementing

district (name of the wise (Rs. In million) agency
District/s, State/s (Rs. In million)
where project/ 
programme was 
undertaken

1. Goodricke School for Special Siliguri, 4.5 4.6 4.6 Through
Special Education Education West Bengal Trust

for differently 
abled
children

2. Interlink -do- Kolkata 0.7 0.8 0.8 Direct
3. Indian Institute of Solar Kolkata 0.6 0.65 0.65 Direct

Cerebral Palsy Project
4. Institute for Plantation Vocational Jalpaiguri 0.5 0.5 0.5 Direct

Agricultural & Rural Tranning for
Workers livelihood

5. Green Centre School Environment
sustainability Jalpaiguri 1.9 1.03 1.03 Direct

6. Incase the Company has failed to spend the two percent, of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report. N.A. 

7. Responsibility Statement
The Chairperson of the CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 

Place : Kolkata S Kaul
Date : May 23rd  2016 Chairperson, CSR Committee
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial period ended on 31st March, 2016

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014.
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I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN L01132WB1977PLC031054

2 Registration Date 14-06-77

3 Name of the Company GOODRICKE GROUP LTD

4 Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by Shares/Non-govt company

5 Address of the Registered office & contact details CAMELLIA HOUSE 14 GURUSADAY ROAD KOLKATA
WB 700019 subrata@goodricke.com

6 Whether listed company Yes

7 Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar C.B Management Services Pvt. Ltd P-22 Bondel Road, 
& Transfer Agent, if any. Kolkata 700 019 Contact Persons: Mr. Kuntal Mustafi

Telephone: +91-33- 40116700 / 11/18 and 40116723

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of main products/services NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
Product/service the company

1 Cultivation Manufacturing and sale of teas 1271 100%

ANNEXURE V TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

As per the provisions of Section 2(46),2(87) and 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
does not have any holding, subsidiary or associate companies. The Promoters of the Company,
namely; Assam Dooars Investments Limited and Western Dooars Investments Limited collectively
hold 74 % of the paid up share capital of the Company. The same has been disclosed later under
serial number IV (ii) of this Annexure to the Report.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 
(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

(i)  Category-wise Share Holding
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Category of [As on 01-January-2015] [As on 31-March-2016]
Shareholders Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total % Change 

Shares Shares during
the year 

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
b) Central Govt —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
c) State Govt(s) —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
d) Bodies Corp. —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
e) Banks / FI —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
f) Any other —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%

Sub Total (A) (1) —   —   —   0.00% — — — 0.00% 0.00%
(2) Foreign

a) NRI Individuals —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
b) Other Individuals —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
c) Bodies Corp. 15,984,000 —   15,984,000 74.00% 15,984,000 — 15,984,000 74.00% 0.00%
d) Any other —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%

Sub Total (A) (2) 15,984,000 —   15,984,000 74.00% 15,984,000 — 15,984,000 74.00% 0.00%
TOTAL (A) 15,984,000 —   15,984,000 74.00% 15,984,000 — 15,984,000 74.00% 0.00%
B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds —   2,671 2,671 0.01% — 1,735 1,735 0.01% -35.04%
b) Banks / FI 1,620 1,059 2,679 0.01% 120 1,995 2,115 0.01% -21.05%
c) Central Govt —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
d) State Govt(s) —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
e) Venture Capital Funds —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
f) Insurance Companies —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
g) FIIs 2,500 50 2,550 0.01% 2,500 50 2,550 0.01% 0.00%
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
i) Others (specify) —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-total (B)(1):- 4,120 3,780 7,900 0.04% 2,620 3,780 6,400 0.03% -18.99%
2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 1,265,402 5,960 1,271,362 5.89% 827,363 5,960 833,323 3.86% -34.45%
ii) Overseas —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%

b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh 2,691,484 427,596 3,119,080 14.44% 2,978,469 414,043 3,392,512 15.71% 8.77%
ii) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh 1,095,928 —   1,095,928 5.07% 1,083,852 — 1,083,852 5.02% -1.10%

c) Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians 50,178 1,250 51,428 0.24% 116,634 1,250 117,884 0.55% 129.22%
Overseas Corporate Bodies —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Nationals —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
Clearing Members 70,302 —   70,302 0.33% 182,029 — 182,029 0.84% 158.92%
Trusts —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Bodies - D R —   0.00% — 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-total (B)(2):- 5,173,294 434,806 5,608,100 25.96% 5,188,347 421,253 5,609,600 25.97% 0.03%
Total Public (B) 5,177,414 438,586 5,616,000 26.00% 5,190,967 425,033 5,616,000 26.00% 0.00%
C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs — 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Grand Total (A+B+C) 21,161,414 438,586 21,600,000 100.00% 21,174,967 425,033 21,600,000 100.00% 0.00%
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(ii)  Shareholding of Promoter
SN Shareholder’s Name             Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of % of total % of Shares Pledged/ No. of % of total % of Shares Pledged/ % change in 
Shares Shares of encumbered Shares Shares of the encumbered shareholding

the company to total shares company to total shares during the year
1 Western Dooars Investments Ltd. 5,594,400 25.90% — 5,594,400 0 0 0.00%
2 Assam Dooars Investments Ltd. 10,389,600 48.10% — 10,389,600 0 0 0.00%

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
SN Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding 

beginning of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total shares  No. of shares % of total shares 

1 At the beginning of the year 01.01.2015 15,984,000 1 15,984,000 74.00%
2 Changes during the year no change during the year
3 At the end of the year 31.03.2016 15,984,000 1 15,984,000 74.00%

(iv)   Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN For each of the Top 10 shareholders Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 
of the year during the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
1 KOOMBER PROPERTIES & LEASING COMPANY LIMITED
a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 273,872 1.25 273,872 1.25%

09-01-15 Transfer 268872 1.24
16-01-15 Transfer 263872 1.22
23-01-15 Transfer 258872 1.20
13-02-15 Transfer 254872 1.18
13-03-15 Transfer 249872 1.16
17-04-15 Transfer 244872 1.13
24-04-15 Transfer 242372 1.12
01-05-15 Transfer 237372 1.10
15-05-15 Transfer 232372 1.08
22-05-15 Transfer 222372 1.03
29-05-15 Transfer 217372 1.01
12-06-15 Transfer 212372 0.98
19-06-15 Transfer 209872 0.97
30-06-15 Transfer 204872 0.95
10-07-15 Transfer 194872 0.90
24-07-15 Transfer 189872 0.88

b Changes during the year 31-07-15 Transfer 184872 0.86
07-08-15 Transfer 179872 0.83
14-08-15 Transfer 174872 0.81
21-08-15 Transfer 169872 0.79
11-09-15 Transfer 164872 0.76
18-09-15 Transfer 162372 0.75
16-10-15 Transfer 157372 0.73
20-11-15 Transfer 151371 0.70
27-11-15 Transfer 141371 0.65
04-12-15 Transfer 127371 0.59
11-12-15 Transfer 112371 0.52
18-12-15 Transfer 102371 0.47
25-12-15 Transfer 92371 0.43
31-12-15 Transfer 89371 0.41
08-01-16 Transfer 84371 0.39
22-01-16 Transfer 80371 0.37
29-01-16 Transfer 74371 0.34
05-02-16 Transfer 69371 0.32
19-02-16 Transfer 54371 0.25
26-02-16 Transfer 44371 0.21
04-03-16 Transfer 21371 0.10
11-03-16 Transfer 6371 0.03
11-03-16 Transfer 0 0.00

c At the end of the year 31-03-16 0 0.00
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(iv)   Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Contd.)
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN For each of the Top 10 shareholders Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 
of the year during the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

2 AMGOORIE INDIA LIMITED
a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 211000 0.98 211000 0.98
b Changes during the year 18-03-16 Transfer 180500 0.84

25-03-16 Transfer 164500 0.76
31-03-16 Transfer 138500 0.64

c At the end of the year 31-03-16 138,500 0.64 138500 0.64

4 MILLENIUM DEVELOPERS PVT LIMITED
a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 180100 0.83 180100 0.83

09-10-15 Transfer 169298 0.78
16-10-15 Transfer 157498 0.73
06-11-15 Transfer 137699 0.64
27-11-15 Transfer 129699 0.60

b Changes during the year 04-12-15 Transfer 107093 0.50
11-12-15 Transfer 92275 0.43
31-12-15 Transfer 89775 0.42
25-03-16 Transfer 55433 0.26
25-03-16 Transfer 0 0.00

c At the end of the year 31-03-16 0 0.00

5 SHIVANI T TRIVEDI
a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 169090 0.78 169090 0.78
b Changes during the year 27-02-15 Transfer 64090 0.78

31-03-15 Transfer 90 0.73
10-04-15 Transfer 64090 0.64
24-04-15 Transfer 66227 0.60
01-05-15 Transfer 68852 0.50
17-07-15 Transfer 74465 0.43
14-09-15 Transfer 0 0.00

c At the end of the year 31-03-16 0 0.00

6 KALYANI P JAIN
a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 129051 0.60 129051 0.60
b Changes during the year 22-01-16 Transfer 133911 0.62

05-02-16 Transfer 133951 0.62
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 133951 0.62

3 LEBONG INVESTMENTS LIMITED

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 197413 0.91 197413 0.91
b Changes during the year nil nil nil nil
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 197413 0.91
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(iv)   Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Contd.)
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SN For each of the Top 10 shareholders Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 
of the year during the year

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

7 SATISH KUMAR BHASIN

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 119531 0.55 119531 0.55
b Changes during the year 24-04-15 Transfer 117531 0.54

18-12-15 Transfer 107531 0.50
25-12-15 Transfer 102531 0.47

c At the end of the year 31-03-16 102531 0.47

8 BORBAM INVESTMENTS LIMITED

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 76647 0.35 76647 0.35
b Changes during the year nil nil nil nil
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 76647 0.35

9 PRAKASH JAIN

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 71929 0.33 71929 0.33
b Changes during the year nil nil nil nil
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 71929 0.33

10 PRANAV KUMARPAL PAREKH

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 46571 0.22 46571 0.22
b Changes during the year nil nil nil nil
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 46571 0.22

11 BMD SECURITIES LIMITED

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 0 0.00 0 0.00
b Changes during the year 31-03-16 Transfer 143190 0.66 143190 0.66
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 143190 0.66

12 TEJAS BALACHANDRA TRIVEDI

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 0 0.00 0 0.00
b Changes during the year 18-09-15 Transfer 104486 0.48 104486 0.48
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 104486 0.48

13 SHIVANI TEJAS TRIVEDI

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 0 0.00 0 0.00
b Changes during the year 18-09-15 Transfer 74465 0.34 74465 0.34
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 74465 0.34

14 DR RAMESH CHIMMANLAL SHAH

a At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 0 0.00 0 0.00
b Changes during the year 31-12-15 Transfer 70000 0.32 70000 0.32
c At the end of the year 31-03-16 70000 0.32
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(v)   Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SN Shareholding of each Directors and Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 

each Key Managerial Personnel of the year during the year
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

1 MR P.J. FIELD

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 -   - -   0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 -   - -   0.00%

2 MS. S.A. WALKER

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 -   - -   0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 -   - -   0.00%

3 MR. A.N. SINGH

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 180 0.0001 180 0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 180 0.00%

4 DR S KAUL

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 -   - -   0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 -   - -   0.00%

5 MR K SINHA

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 -   - -   0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 -   - -   0.00%

6 MR P.K SEN

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 -   - -   0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 -   - -   0.00%

7 MR A SEGUPTA

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 6 0.00003 6 0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 6 0.00%

8 MR S BANERJEE

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 6 0.00003 6 0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 6 0.00%

9 MR A K MATHUR (resigned w.e.f. 30.7.2015)

At the beginning of the year 01-01-15 -   - -   0.00%

Changes during the year -   - -   0.00%

At the end of the year 31-03-16 -   - -   0.00%
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.                        (Amt. Rs./Lacs)

Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 794.67 -   - 794.67 

ii)  Interest due but not paid -   -   -  -   

iii)  Interest accrued but not due 10.47 -   - 10.47 

Total (i+ii+iii) 805.14 -   - 805.14 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

* Addition 10,320.00 1,000.00 -   11,320.00 

* Reduction 11,125.14 1,000.00 - 12,125.14 

Net Change (805.14) -   -   (805.14)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount -   -   -   -   

ii) Interest due but not paid -   -   -   -   

iii) Interest accrued but not due -   -   - -
Total (i+ii+iii) -   -   -   -

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Managing Director & CEO Total Amount 
MR. AN SINGH (Rs/Lac)

1 Gross salary
(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1)

of the Income-tax Act, 1961 99.75 99.75 

(b)  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 21.25 21.25 

(c)  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 58.96 58.96 

2 Stock Option 0 -   

3 Sweat Equity 0 -   

4 Commission -   

-  as % of profit -   

-  others, specify 6 6.00 

5 Others, please specify - 

Total (A) 185.96 185.96 

Ceiling as per the Act NOTE*

*NOTE: Rs 36.40 Lacs representing contribution to provident fund, pension fund and leave encashment benefit included in the
total above but not considered for determination of limit as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.
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B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
(Rs/Lac)

1 Independent Directors S KAUL K SINHA P K SEN 
Fee for attending board committee meetings 2.17 2.17 1.77 6.11 
Commission -   -   -   -   
Others, please specify -   
Total (1) 2.17 2.17 1.77 6.11 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors P J FIELD S A WALKER A K MATHUR -   
Fee for attending board committee meetings -   -   -   -   
Commission -   -   -   -   
Others, please specify -   -   -   -   
Total (2) -   -   -   -   
Total (B)=(1+2) 2.17 2.17 1.77 6.11 
Total Managerial Remuneration 192.07 
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount   

(Rs/Lac)
A SENGUPTA S BANERJEE

CFO CS
1 Gross salary

(a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 18.18 14.60 32.78 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 3.54 3.79 7.33 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 9.97 2.96 12.93 

2 Stock Option nil nil -   
3 Sweat Equity nil nil -   
4 Commission

-  as % of profit -   
-  others, specify 4.35 3.39 7.74 

5 Others, please specify -   
Total 36.04 24.74 60.78

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

There were no Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of offence for breach of any provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 against the Company or its Directors or other Officers in default, during the period.

ANNEXURE V TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)



49

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD ENDED ON 31st March, 2016 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members, 
Goodricke Group Limited 
Camellia House,
14, Gurusaday Road,
Kolkata - 700 019

1. We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Goodricke Group Limited (hereinafter called 'the
company') during the financial period ended 31st March, 2016. Secretarial Audit was conducted on test
check basis, in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

2. On the basis of aforesaid verification of the secretarial compliance and on the basis of secretarial audit
of company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company, as shown to us during the said audit and also based on the information provided by the
company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the aforesaid
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion and to the best of our understanding, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial period ended on 31st March, 2016,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also the company has adequate Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

3. We further report that compliance with applicable laws is the responsibility of the company and our
report constitutes an independent opinion. Our report is neither an assurance for future viability of the
company nor a confirmation of efficient management by the company. 

4. (I) We have examined the secretarial compliance on test check basis of the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s. Goodricke Group Limited for the
financial period ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the provisions of the following laws and as
shown to us during our audit, as also referred in above paragraphs of this report;

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; 
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(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act') viz. :- 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, to the extent as applicable.

(II) We have also examined the secretarial compliance on test check basis of the books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s Goodricke Group
Limited for the financial period ended on 31st March, 2016, according to the provisions of the
following laws specifically applicable to the company and as shown to us during our audit, as
also referred in above paragraphs of this report; 

a) The Tea Act, 1953 (No. 29 of 1953);

b) The Tea Rules, 1954;

c) The Tea Board Bye laws, 1955;

d) The Tea (Distribution & Export) Control Order, 1957;

e) The Tea (Waste) Control Order, 1959, now being amended by the Tea (Distribution & Export)
Control Order, 2005;

f) The Tea (Regulations of Export Licensing) Order, 1984;

g) The Tea (Marketing) Control Order, 1984, Tea (Marketing) Control Order, 2003;

h) The Tea Warehouses (Licensing) Order, 1989.

5. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under Section 118
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

6. That on the basis of the audit as referred above, to the best of our knowledge, understanding and belief,
we are of the view that during the period under review the company has complied with the provisions
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above in Paragraph 4(I),
Paragraph 4(II) and Paragraph 5 of this report.

7. We have checked the standard listing agreement entered by the company with the following Stock 
Exchange in India and to the best of our understanding, we are of the view that the company has 
adequately complied with the secretarial functions and board processes to comply with the applicable 
provision thereof, during the aforesaid period under review. 

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
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8. We further report that,

a) The Board of Directors of the company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

c) Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes.

9. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines, such as laws related to taxation, local laws applicable to the area of
operation of business and other laws generally applicable to company.

10. This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this Report.

For,  ANJAN KUMAR ROY & CO.
Company Secretaries

Place : Kolkata ANJAN KUMAR ROY

Date  : 23rd May, 2016                Proprietor

FCS No. 5684

CP. No. 4557
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‘Annexure A'
(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. Goodricke Group Limited for the financial 

period ended 31st March, 2016)

To, 
The Members, 
M/s. Goodricke Group Limited 
Camellia House, 
14, Gurusaday Road,
Kolkata - 700 019

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial period ended 31/03/2016 of even date is to be read along
with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is
limited to expressing an opinion on existence of adequate board process and compliance management system,
commensurate to the size of the company, based on the secretarial records as shown to us during the said audit
and also based on the information furnished to us by the officers and agents of the company during the said audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate, to the best of our understanding, to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on
test basis to check as to whether correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the
company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc. and we have relied on such representation, in forming our opinion.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of compliance procedures on test
basis. We would not be liable for any business decision or any consequences arising thereof, made on the basis of
our report.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness or accuracy with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For, ANJAN KUMAR ROY & CO. 

Company Secretaries

ANJAN KUMAR ROY

Proprietor
FCS No. 5684
CP. No. 4557
Place: Kolkata
Date: 23rd May, 2016

52

ANNEXURE VI TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)



53

REMUNERATION POLICY

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 This Remuneration Policy is based on the requirements of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013

and the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (effective from October 1, 2014) and approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on November 14, 2014.

1.2 Remuneration at Goodricke Group Limited ("the Company") is based on the principles of
performance, equitableness and competitiveness. This Remuneration Policy has been designed to
reflect these principles and to attract, motivate and retain quality manpower for driving the
Company successfully.

1.3 This Remuneration Policy applied to the Board of Directors, Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Senior Management Personnel of the Company.

1.4 This Remuneration Policy shall be effective from November 14, 2014.

2.0 OBJECTIVES

2.1 The objectives of this Remuneration Policy are :

(a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes of Directors,
KMP and Senior Management Personnel and also independence of independent Directors.

(b) Aligning the remuneration of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel with the
Company's financial position, remuneration paid by its industry peers etc.;

(c) Performance evaluation of the Board, its Committee and Directors including Independent
Directors;

(d) Ensuring Board diversity;

(e) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down;

(f) Directors' induction and continued training.

3.0 DEFINITIONS
3.1 "Act" means the Companies Act, 2013.

3.2 "Board" means Board of Directors of the Company.

3.3 "Director" means Director as defined under Section 2(34) of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.4 "Committee" means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or
reconstituted by the Board from time to time in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

3.5 "Company" means Goodricke Group Limited (GOODRICKE).

3.6 "Independent Director" means a director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

3.7 "Key Managerial Personnel" means :
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(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

(ii) the Company Secretary;

(iii) the Whole-Time Director;

(iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and

(v) such other officer as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

3.8 "Senior Management" means personnel of the Company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one
level below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

4.0 GUIDING PRINCIPLES
4.1 The Company shall follow the following guiding principles in order to attract, motivate and retain

talent in the Company.

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

5.0 GENERAL
This Policy is divided in five parts :

Part-A covers criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes of Directors, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel and also independence of Independent Directors.

Part-B covers Induction and Training of Directors

Part-C covers Performance Evaluation of Board, its Committees and Directors including Independent Directors

Part-D covers Remuneration of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

Part-E covers Board Diversity

6.0 PART-A
Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes of Directors, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel and also independence of Independent Directors.

1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualifications,
expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or Senior Management
Personnel and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

2. A person should possess adequate qualifications, expertise and experience for the position he/she is
considered for appointment as a Director. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualifications, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient/satisfactory for the
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concerned position and are in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement.

3. The Committee shall ensure that a person proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director satisfies
the criteria laid down under the Act read the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

4. The appointment and tenure of Directors, Independent Directors and KMP shall be in accordance with
the provisions of the Act read with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

7.0 PART-B
Induction and Training of Directors

1. On appointment, Directors shall receive a letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of
appointment, duties, roles and responsibilities. Each newly appointed Director will be taken
through a formal induction programme.

2. The induction process should be designed to familiarize them with the Company, their roles,
rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of industry in which the Company operates,
business model of the Company etc.

3. It shall be ensured that the Directors are updated as and when required of their roles,
responsibilities and liabilities.

4. The Company may organize garden visits for Directors from time to time.

8.0 PART-C
Performance Evaluation of Board, its Committees and Directors

The evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and Directors shall be carried out on
an annual basis. The performance of the Board and Committees thereof shall be evaluated against their
terms of reference. Evaluation of the performance of Directors shall include consideration of their skills,
performance and contribution to the Board, Company strategy and Board Committees, their availability
and attendance at Board and Committee Meeting.

9.0 PART-D
Remuneration of Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

1. The remuneration of the Executive Directors, KMP and Senior Management Personnel should be
based on Company's financial position, industrial trends, remuneration paid by peer companies.
The remuneration should be reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate the aforesaid
persons.

2. Remuneration to Executive Directors shall be paid by way of salary, perquisites and retirement
benefits, based on recommendation of the Committee and approval of the Board and
shareholders. The overall managerial remuneration shall be within the ceilings stipulated under
Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

3. The non-executive directors shall be paid remuneration by way of sitting fee for attending the
meetings of the Board and Committees thereof.
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4. The KMP shall be paid remuneration approved by the Board of Directors. The Senior Management
Personnel shall be paid remuneration in line with the Company's internal HR Policy.

5. Increments in the existing remuneration of Executive Directors and KMP shall be approved by the
Committee within the limits prescribed under the Act. Increments in the remuneration of Senior
Management Personnel shall be as per Company's HR Policy.

10.0 PART-E
Board Diversity

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will be considered on the basis of their skills,
knowledge, experience and background, gender and other distinguishing qualities, having due regard
to the effectiveness of the Board. It will be ensured that the Board possesses a balance of skills
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The Directors should have a mix of
finance, legal, academic and management backgrounds that taken together provide the Company with
considerable experience in a range of activities including varied industries, education, government,
banking, plantation, investment and other professions.

11.0 APPLICABILITY OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY
This Remuneration Policy shall apply to all future appointments of Directors, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel.

12.0 AMENDMENT
Any modification/amendment in this Remuneration Policy may be carried out by the Board on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. This policy will be subject to change
as per amendment in the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Agreement, or any other applicable Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines.
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Particulars of Employees
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2016

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(q)OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

READ WITH RULE 5(2) & 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Name Age No. of Designation Remuneration Qualification Experience Date of Previous
shares (Rs.) (years) commencement employment
held of employment & position 

held

Employed during the year and in receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 6,000,000/- per annum or more

Arun Narain 62 180 Managing 18596101 M.Sc 41 01.01.1978 Duncan 
Singh Director Brothers &

& CEO Co. Ltd. / 
Tea Garden
Assistant

Notes : 1.  Nature of Employment and duties :  Contractual and in accordance with terms and conditions as
per Company's rules.

2.  Remuneration  received includes salary, allowance, leave encashed, Company's contribution to
retirement funds etc. and monetary value of other perquisites computed on the basis of the
Income Tax Act and Rules. 

3.  No employee is a relative of any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, Rule 5
(2) (iii) of the captioned Rules is not applicable to any employee. 

ANNEXURE VIII TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS



GOODRICKE GROUP LTD

58

Particulars

Mr. A. N. Singh, Managing Director & CEO 

The non-executive Independent directors are  entitled to
setting fees only. The non-executive, non-independent
directors are not paid any fees. The details of
remuneration are provided in Corporate Governance
Report. 

a) Mr. A. N. Singh - Not applicable since minimum
Remuneration paid during the year.

b) Mr. A. Sengupta - Vice President & CFO of 13.74%.

c) Mr. S. Banerjee - CS - 7.19%.

The details given in Cl. (II) above  and in this Cl.
Comparison had been made between periods of 12
months & 15 months = 76.7% for all
employees / 19.5% for executives

24491 Employees as on 31st March, 2016.

The average increase in remuneration of employees
70.38%.  Employees are granted increments based on
their performance as well as the performance of the
Company. However, unionised employees and
labourers at the garden level are governed by respective
Agreement (Industry wise) and the average increase in
remuneration is in accordance with the terms of such
Agreement.

The remuneration of the KMP's are in line with the
remuneration policy of the Company as affirmed in item
(xii) below. Their remuneration is determined based on
their individual performance which is correlated to the
performance of the Company.

Requirement of Rule 5 (1)

(i)   The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to
the median remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial period.

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial
period .

(iii) The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the financial period.

iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of
company.

(v) The explanation on the relationship between
average increase in remuneration and company
performance.

(vi) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of
the company.

Statement of Particulars of employees pursuant to Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Ratio or remuneration of
each Director to median
Remuneration of
employees for 2015-16

Ratio of remuneration of
each Director to median
remuneration of
executive grade
employees for 2014

315.30:1                          23.69:1

ANNEXURE VIII TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd.)



59

On behalf of the Board

A. N. Singh
Managing Director & CEO

S. Kaul
K. Sinha

Place : Kolkata P.K. Sen
Date : 23rd May, 2016 Directors

Market

As on As on %
31.03.2016 31.12.2014 Increase

Share Price (BSE) 169 158.30 6.76

The Company has not made any public issue of
Securities after its formation in 1978.  The comparison of
market quotation of shares with that of the last public
offer does not arise. 

Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees,
other than the Managerial Personnel, in the last Financial
Year 2015- 2016 was around 70.38%. The Managing
Director & CEO  of the Company was paid Minimum
Remuneration in view of the inadequate profit. Thus,
there was effectively no increase in his Remuneration for
the Financial Period 2015-2016.

Remuneration of KMPs was based on the Company
increment guideline. 

Commission in the only variable components for
Managing Director & CEO, which is determined on the
basis of performance of the Company. 

N.A.

YES

(vii) Variations in the market capitalization of the
company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of
the current financial period  and previous financial year
and percentage increase over decrease in the market
quotations of the shares of the company in comparison
to the rate at which the company came out with the last
public offer in case of listed companies, and in case of
unlisted companies, the variations in the net worth of
the company as at the close of the current financial
period and previous financial year.

(viii) Average percentile increase already made in the
salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial period  and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration.

(ix) Comparison of remuneration of the Key Managerial
Personnel against the  performance of the company.

(x) The key parameters for any variable component of
remuneration availed by the Directors.

(xi) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid
Director to that of the employees who are not Directors
but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid
Director during the year.

(xii) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GOODRICKE GROUP LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Goodricke Group Limited ("the Company"),

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the 15 months period then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements to give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under including the
accounting standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)of
the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view, in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the  financial statements.



61

Opinion
8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2016, and its loss and its cash flows for the period
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
9. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015', issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred to as the "Order"), and
on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
asit appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account .

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2016 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2016 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2016 on
its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 19; 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March
31, 2016;

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the period ended March 31, 2016.

For LOVELOCK & LEWES
Firm Registration No. 301056E

Chartered Accountants
Prabal Kr Sarkar

Kolkata Partner
May 23, 2016 Membership No. 052340
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i. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 periods which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  Pursuant to the programme,
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the period
and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

ii. (a) The inventory [excluding stocks with third parties] has been physically verified by the Management
during the period. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the Management
are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the Company is
maintaining proper records of inventory.  The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records were not material.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(iii), (iii)(a) and (iii)(b) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services.  Further, on the basis
of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across, nor have been informed of, any continuing
failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system. The Company does not sell
services.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75
and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi.  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of products
where, pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records
has been specified under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.  We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete. 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax and cess though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including provident fund, employees' state insurance, wealth tax, duty of customs and duty of
exciseand other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of wealth-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, cess which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of income tax, agricultural
income tax, sales tax, duty of excise and value added taxas at March 31, 2016 which have not
been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Goodricke Group Limited
on the financial statements as of and for the period ended March 31, 2016 



Name of the Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the dispute
Statute dues (Rs.) the amount relates is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 Central Income Tax 3,162,478 2002-03 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Central Income Tax 20,362,577 2003-04 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Central Income Tax 2,995,905 2006-07 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Central Income Tax 3,228,121 2007-08 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Central Income Tax 26,204,537 2008-09 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Central Income Tax 4,600,443 2009-10 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Income Tax Act, 1961 Central Income Tax 2,303,100 2010-11 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Bengal Agricultural Bengal Agricultural 5,533,624 1984-85 Commissioner of Agricultural
Income Tax, 1944 Income Tax Income Tax, West Bengal
Bengal Agricultural Bengal Agricultural 10,874,512 1989-90 Commissioner of Agricultural
Income Tax, 1944 Income Tax Income Tax, West Bengal
Bengal Agricultural Bengal Agricultural 13,333,356 1990-91 The West Bengal Commercial Taxes
Income Tax, 1944 Income Tax Appellate and Revision Board
Bengal Agricultural Bengal Agricultural 5,202,053 2001-02 Agricultural Income Tax officer, 
Income Tax, 1944 Income Tax West Bengal
Bengal Agricultural Bengal Agricultural 159,356 2002-03 Agricultural Income Tax officer,
Income Tax, 1944 Income Tax West Bengal
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Authorities 2,131,179 April' 2008 Additional Commissioner, Central Excise and

to October' 2011 Service Tax, Siliguri Commissionerate
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Authorities 10,803,421 January' 2010 Commissioner, Central Excise and 

to November '2014 Service Tax, Siliguri Commissionerate
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Authorities 23,894,391 March' 2015 Commissioner, Central Excise and 

to December' 2015 Service Tax, Siliguri Commissionerate
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Authorities 5,78,164 April' 2015 Commissioner, Central Excise and 

to January' 2016 Service Tax, Siliguri Commissionerate.
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Authorities 2,06,970,542 April'2010 The Registrar, Custom, Excise &  

to January'2015 Service Tax Appellate Tribunal
W.B. Vat Act,2003 Sales Tax Authorities 318,581 2007-08 The West Bengal Commercial Taxes

Appellate And Revisional Board
CST Act, 1956 Sales Tax Authorities 1,183,654 2007-08 The West Bengal Commercial Taxes

Appellate And Revisional Board
CST Act, 1956 Sales Tax Authorities 1,985,445 2011-12 Sr. Joint Commissioner, Department of Sales Tax
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c)    The amount required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund has been transferred within the stipulated time in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder.

viii. The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end of the financial period and it has incurred cash losses in the financial period
ended on March 31, 2016. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial period.

ix. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

x. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans
taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the period. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(x) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company

xi. The Company has not raised any term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
xii. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted

auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance
of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the period, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

For LOVELOCK & LEWES
Firm Registration No. 301056E

Chartered Accountants
Kolkata Prabal Kr Sarkar
May 23, 2016 Partner

Membership No. 052340
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Note As at As at
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 2 216,000,000 216,000,000
Reserves and Surplus 3 1,682,486,056 1,915,375,978 

1,898,486,056 2,131,375,978 
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4 95,353,833 —
Long Term Provisions 5 108,282,538 102,314,182 

203,636,371 102,314,182 
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 6 — 79,466,823 
Trade Payables 7

"Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterpises & 
Small Enterprises" — 381,552 
"Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than
Micro Enterpises & Small Enterprises" 556,285,309 630,526,736 

Other Current Liabilities 8 661,010,910 686,483,578 
Short Term Provisions 9 222,450,693 332,065,877 

1,439,746,912 1,728,924,566 
Total 3,541,869,339 3,962,614,726 

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets 10 1,359,003,245 1,004,514,047 
Intangible Assets 10 1,270,932 353,428 
Capital Work in Progress 27,334,582 17,857,698 

Non Current Investments 11 17,296 17,296 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 — 70,492,424 
Long Term Loans and Advances 12 130,300,343 58,472,421 
Other Non Current Assets 13 7,895,491 27,137,092 

1,525,821,889 1,178,844,406 
Current Assets
Inventories 14 1,367,346,330 1,628,026,184 
Trade Receivables 15 357,192,760 914,931,917 
Cash and Bank Balances 16 111,381,256 35,806,123 
Short Term Loans and Advances 17 139,515,174 137,505,047 
Other Current Assets 18 40,611,930 67,501,049

2,016,047,450 2,783,770,320 
Total 3,541,869,339 3,962,614,726 

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

On behalf of the Board
Prabal Kr. Sarkar A. N. Singh

Partner A. Sengupta Managing Director & CEO
Plot No. Y-14, Block EP Membership No. 052340 Vice President & CFO S. Kaul
Sector V, Salt Lake LOVELOCK & LEWES K. Sinha
Kolkata - 700 091 Firm Registration No. 301056E S. Banerjee P. K. Sen
23rd Day of May, 2016 Chartered Accountants Company Secretary Directors

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2016
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Note 15 Month Period Year ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.
INCOME

Revenue from Operations (Gross) 22 7,446,065,975 6,023,075,062 
Less: Excise Duty 3,813,605 5,952,602 
Revenue from Operations (Net) 7,442,252,370 6,017,122,460 
Other Income 23 118,272,490 101,639,686 

Total Revenue 7,560,524,860 6,118,762,146 

Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 24 1,914,774,058 1,460,714,265 
Purchase of Stock in Trade 593,814,269 362,266,284 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 25 230,237,495 (55,256,893)
Employee Benefit Expenses 26 2,751,459,949 2,136,473,866 
Finance Costs 27 26,114,359 31,859,037 
Depreciation and Amortization 10 181,488,958 131,441,040 
Other Expenses 28 2,196,069,667 1,760,873,051 

Total Expense 7,893,958,755 5,828,370,650 

Profit Before Exceptional Items & Tax (333,433,895) 290,391,496

Exceptional Item 43 370,379,542 —   

Profit Before Tax 36,945,647 290,391,496 

Tax Expense
Current Tax — 132,500,000 
Deferred Tax 165,846,257 (64,495,431)

Profit for the Period (128,900,610) 222,386,927 

Earnings per Equity Share of Face value of Rs.10 each
Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) (5.97) 10.30

The accompanying notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

On behalf of the Board

Prabal Kr. Sarkar A. N. Singh
Partner A. Sengupta Managing Director & CEO

Plot No. Y-14, Block EP Membership No. 052340 Vice President & CFO S. Kaul
Sector V, Salt Lake LOVELOCK & LEWES K. Sinha
Kolkata - 700 091 Firm Registration No. 301056E S. Banerjee P. K. Sen
23rd Day of May, 2016 Chartered Accountants Company Secretary Directors

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
for the Fifteen Month Period ended 31st March 2016
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15 months period ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

(Rs.) (Rs.)
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Net profit before taxation 36,945,647 290,391,496  
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 181,488,958 131,441,040 
Change in Method of Depreciation (370,379,542) -   
Interest expense 26,114,359 31,849,216 
Interest Income (9,339,926) (18,513,308)
Profit on sale/Discard of Fixed Assets(net) 738,674 (771,910)
Liabilities no longer required written back (20,940,021) (18,982,454)
Debts , Loans &  Advances Written off 18,177,649 668,348 
Provision for doubtful debts,Loans & advances 8,016,715 2,188,145 
Investment Income (5,208,100) (2,615,422)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on exchange 987,298 (2,642,628)

(170,343,936) 122,621,027 

Operating profit before working capital changes (133,398,289) 413,012,523 
Adjustments for: 
Trade and other receivables 575,936,985 (34,032,701)
Inventories 260,679,854 (260,518,122)
Trade payables (155,995,303) 251,885,400 

680,621,536 (42,665,423)

Cash generated from operations 547,223,247 370,347,100  
Direct Taxes paid (75,190,192) (150,641,267)
Net Cash  from  Operating Activities 472,033,055 219,705,833  

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Fixed Assets (191,598,192) (147,448,215)
Sale of Fixed Assets 2,668,357 1,614,937 
Purchase of Investments (740,719,754) (350,000,000)
Sale of Investments 745,927,854 352,615,422 
Interest received 9,778,922 16,317,505 
Net Cash used in  Investing Activities (173,942,813) (126,900,351)

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
(Decrease)/Increase in Working capital facilities from Bank (79,466,823) 3,777,218 
Dividend paid (96,452,759) (96,557,808)
Income Tax on dividend paid (19,434,282) (16,519,140)
Interest paid (27,161,245) (31,246,057)

Net Cash used in Financing Activities (222,515,109) (140,545,787)
Net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents 75,575,133 (47,740,305)

(D) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Balance at the Beginning of the Period/ Year 35,806,123 83,546,428 
Balance at the End of the Period/ Year* 111,381,256 35,806,123 
Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents - Increase/(Decrease) 75,575,133 (47,740,305)
*Includes Unpaid Dividend Account 5,341,677 4,594,436 

Note: 1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 
on Cash Flow Statements issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

2. Previous year's figures have been rearranged / regrouped wherever necessary

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2016

On behalf of the Board

A. N. Singh 
A. Sengupta Managing Director & CEO

Vice President & CFO S. Kaul
K. Sinha

Kolkata S. Banerjee P.K. Sen
23rd Day of May, 2016 Company Secretary Directors

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our Report of even date.
Prabal Kr. Sarkar

Partner
Membership No. 052340

For LOVELOCK & LEWES
Plot No. Y-14, Block EP, Sector V, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700091 Firm Registration No. 301056E
23rd Day of May, 2016 Chartered Accountants
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FIFTEEN MONTHS PERIOD ENDED
31st March 2016

COMPANY OVERVIEW
Goodricke is engaged in the manufacture and cultivation of tea.The Company owns 17 tea estates spread across West
Bengal and Assam and sells bulk tea both in domestic and international markets. The Company also produces Instant
Tea at its plant located in Dooars, West Bengal primarily for the international market and has got a strong presence in
Packet Tea domestic market through its various Brands. The Company is a public listed company and is listed on the
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 CONVENTION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India
under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all
material aspects with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non current classification of assets and liabilities.

1.3 FIXED ASSETS
1.3.1 TANGIBLE

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition together with any incidental expenses of acquisition. 

All expenditure incurred for extension of new areas of cultivation are capitalised. However, cost of upkeep and
maintenance and cost of replanting in existing areas are charged to revenue.

Subsidies from Government in respect of fixed assets are deducted from the cost of respective assets.

Profit or Loss on disposal of Fixed Assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.3.2 INTANGIBLE
Cost of software is capitalised where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Capitalisation costs
include licence fees and cost of implementation / system integration services. The costs are capitalised in the year in
which the relevant software is implemented for use. Expenses incurred on upgradation / enhancements is charged off
as revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant additional benefits.

1.3.3 DEPRECIATION AND AMMORTISATION
Depreciation on assets til 31st December, 2014 was provided on written down value method. With Effect from 1st
January, 2015 the Company has changed the method of depreciation to Straight Line Method to align with the industry
practice. Depreciation on Straight Line method is provided on book value of tangible fixed assets(Other than Estate
Development and livestock) in the manner and on the basis of useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies
Act 2013, which are also supported by technical evaluation. Items of Fixed Assets for which related actual cost do not
exceed Rs.5000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease. Estate Development is not depreciated. Livestock is expensed
over its useful life.

Capitalised software costs is amortised on a straight line basis over a period of five years.

1.3.4 IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS
An impairment loss is recognised where applicable, when the carrying value of the fixed assets of a cash generating
unit exceeds its net selling price or value in use, whichever is higher.

1.4 INVESTMENTS
Long Term Investments are stated at cost and where applicable, provision is made in case of other than temporary
diminution in value of investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost or fair value.
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1.5 INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Cost
comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to their location and
condition and includes appropriate overheads. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stocks where necessary.

1.6 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Research and Development Expenditure of revenue nature is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and capital
expenditure is treated as fixed assets.

1.7 RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Company operates defined contribution schemes like Provident Fund and defined Contribution Pension Schemes. 

The Company makes regular contribution to provident funds which are fully funded and administered by Government
and are independent of Company’s finance. Contributions are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual
basis. The Company operates a non contributory defined contribution pension scheme for certain employees. The
Company contributes 15% of the employees’ current salary to the above contribution fund which is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company also operates defined benefit Provident Fund Schemes for certain employees which are fully funded and
administered by trustees and are independent of the Company's finance. The Company makes regular contributions to
the fund and shortfall if any, determined by annual actuarial valuation, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan is  maintained by the company for all its eligible employees. The Company also operates
a Non Contributory Defined Benefit Pension Scheme for certain employees. The Company contributes to such funds
on the basis of actuarial valuation at the end of each year after setting off any net asset in respect of either fund. Both
the Pension Fund and gratuity fund are administered by the Trustees and is independent of the Company’s finance.

For Schemes where recognized funds have been set up annual contributions determined as payable in the actuarial
valuation report are contributed. Actuarial gains & losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Post retirement medical benefits are provided by the Company for certain category of employees. Liability is determined
through independent year end actuarial valuation and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provision is made for retirement leave encashment benefit payable to employees on the basis of independent actuarial
valuation, at the end of each year and charge is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.8 SALES
Sales represent the invoiced value of goods supplied less Sales Tax / Value Added Tax.

1.9 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Income from investments is included together with the related tax credit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.10 REPLANTING AND OTHER SUBSIDIES
Replanting and other subsidies of revenue nature are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in rupees by applying the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Transactions remaining unsettled are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the year.
Exchange gain or loss arising on settlement/translation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Premium or discount on forward contracts are amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract. Foreign
exchange forward contracts are revalued at the balance sheet date and the exchange difference is recognised as
gain/loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Profit or Loss on cancellations/renewals of forward contracts is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.12 TAXES ON INCOME
Current tax represents the amount computed as per prevailing taxation laws under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the difference
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between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods. Deferred Tax assets have been recognized where  there is reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

1.13 BORROWING COSTS
Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition and/or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of the cost
of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.14 LEASES
Lease Payments under the Operating Lease are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

1.15 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as a
contingent liability.

1.16 USE OF ESTIMATES
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in the future
periods. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

1.17 EARNING PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit
or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.18 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash & Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

1.19 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company is engaged in the business of cultivation, manufacture and sale of Tea which is the sole Primary business
segment. The products and their applications are homogeneous in nature. The secondary segments are classified as
Exports and Domestic. The Segment wise Revenue, results, assets and liabilities figures relate to the respective amounts
directly identifiable to each of the segments. Unallocable income / expenditure relate to the Company as a whole and
are earned / incurred at the corporate level. Pricing of inter segment transfers is based on benchmark market price.
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2. SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at

March 31,2016 December 31,2014
Rs. Rs.

Authorised Share Capital
22,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 220,000,000 220,000,000  

Issued Subscribed and Paid up
21,600,000 (Previous Year 21,600,000) Equity Shares 
of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 216,000,000  216,000,000

Total 216,000,000 216,000,000

2.1 Shares held by subsidiaries of Ultimate Holding Company:
As at As at

March 31,2016 December 31,2014
No of Shares No of Shares

Assam Dooars Investment Limited # 10,389,600 10,389,600
Western Dooars Investment Limited # 5,594,400 5,594,400
# Subsidiaries of Camellia PLc , the ultimate holding Company

2.2 Details of Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As at As at
March 31,2016 December 31,2014

No of Shares | (%) No of Shares | (%)

Assam Dooars Investment Limited 10,389,600  |  (48.10%) 10,389,600  |  (48.10%) 
Western Dooars Investment Limited 5,594,400 |  (25.90%) 5,594,400 |  (25.90%) 

2.3 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each
Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to
the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the Equity
Shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

2.4 There is no movement of Share Capital during the year.
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3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at As at

March 31,2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

Capital Reserve
At the Beginning & at the End of the Period 13,558,262 13,558,262
Development Rebate Reserve
At the Beginning & at the End of the Period 991,762 991,762
Development Allowance Reserve
At the Beginning & at the End of the Period 978,599 978,599
Investment Allowance (Utilised) Reserve
At the Beginning & at the End of the Period 895,961 895,961
General Reserve
At the Beginning of the Period 1,855,340,088 1,745,340,088
Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss — 110,000,000
Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss 200,000,000 —
Balance at the end of the Period 1,655,340,088 1,855,340,088
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
At the Beginning of the Period 43,611,306 47,858,661 
Add: Profit for the Period (128,900,610) 222,386,927 
Less: Appropriations

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares [Dividend per share
Rs.4/-(Previous year-Rs.4.50/-)] 86,400,000 97,200,000 
Dividend Distribution Tax on Proposed Dividend 17,589,312 19,434,282 
Transfer to General Reserve —   110,000,000 

Transfer from General Reserve 200,000,000 —
Balance at the end of the Period 10,721,384 43,611,306  

Total 1,682,486,056 1,915,375,978

3.1 Capital Reserve includes Rs.3,883,676/- pre-acquisition profit
3.2 Development Rebate Reserve, Development Allowance Reserve and Investment Allowance (Utilised) Reserve are

transferred from Pre-Merger Reserves.

4. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/ LIABILITIES (NET)
As at As at

March 31,2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Timing Difference between Book and Tax Depreciation 127,676,437 19,223,926  
Deferred Tax Assets:
Employee Benefits 28,750,154 84,713,751  
Others 3,572,450 5,002,599  

Total  95,353,833 (70,492,424)
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5 LONG TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at

March 31, 2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

Provision for Employee Benefits:
Medicals 86,220,000 86,881,841 
Compensated Absences  22,062,538 15,432,341 

Total 108,282,538 102,314,182 

6 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
As at As at

March 31, 2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

Secured:
Rupee Loans From Banks:

Working Capital Loans repayable on demand — 79,466,823   

Total  — 79,466,823 

6.1 Working Capital Loans are secured by equitable mortgage by deposit of title deeds of the Company's Tea Estates
and hypothecation of entire tea crop and other produces of Tea Estates as well as stocks of tea manufactured or
in process and book debts, and entire movable plant and machinery, tools and accessories and other movable fixed
assets both present and future.

7 TRADE PAYABLES
As at As at

March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014
Rs Rs

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro Enterpises & 
Small Enterprises (See Note 34 ) — 381,552 
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than 
Micro Enterpises & Small Enterprises 556,285,309 630,526,736

Total  556,285,309 630,908,288
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8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at As at

March 31, 2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings — 1,046,886 

Unpaid Dividend 5,341,677 4,594,436 

Advance from Customers 74,183,653 89,823,184 

Payable towards Purchase of Fixed Assets 19,068,490 32,931,026 

Employee Benefits Payable 448,274,807 481,796,690 

Statutory dues 25,596,362 26,817,678 

Others (including security deposits) 88,545,921 49,473,678 

Total  661,010,910 686,483,578 

8.1 There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to  Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 

31st March, 2016

9 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at

March 31, 2016 December 31,2014

Rs Rs

Provision for Employee Benefits:

Gratuity 72,689,000 199,041,000 

Pension 28,117,000 2,773,532 

Medicals 5,097,000 2,064,026 

Provident Fund 5,055,000 4,646,155 

Compensated Absences 5,019,217 4,139,618 

Provision for Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 86,400,000 97,200,000 

Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax on Proposed Dividend 17,589,312 19,434,282 

Provision for Wealth Tax 2,484,164 2,767,264 

Total 222,450,693 332,065,877  
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11 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
As at As at

March 31,2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

At Cost less Provision for other than temporary diminution
Long Term Trade Investments
In Equity Instruments-Quoted, fully paid up
442 (2014: 442) Equity shares of Rs.10 each in Duncan
Industries Limited 664,119 664,119  
In Equity Instruments- Unquoted, fully paid up
20,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each in
ABC Tea Workers Welfare Services 200,000 200,000 

Total Trade Investments 864,119 864,119  
Less: Provision for diminution in value of Quoted investments 657,266 657,266 
Less: Provision for diminution in value of Unquoted investments 189,557 189,557 

Total Non Current Investments 17,296 17,296 
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments 664,119 664,119 
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments 4,880 8,752 
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments 200,000 200,000 
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments 846,823 846,823 

12 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured, Considered Good (Unless Otherwise Stated):
Capital Advances 16,112,199 17,776,576 
Security Deposits 12,093,379 11,723,526 
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision Rs. 1,802,659,019 
(2014-Rs.1,802,659,019)) 87,345,716 12,155,524 
Loans and Advances to Employees 13,912,897 15,980,643 
Balance with Government Authorities 836,152 836,152 
Other Loans and Advances

-Considered Doubtful 8,691,232 7,419,646 
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (8,691,232) (7,419,646)

Total 130,300,343 58,472,421

13 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Margin Money Deposit #

(with maturity more than 12 months) 7,895,491 27,137,092 

Total 7,895,491 27,137,092 

# Kept with Bank for issuing Bank Guarantee
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14 INVENTORIES
(AT LOWER OF COST AND NET REALISABLE VALUE) As at As at

March 31,2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

Raw Materials ( Includes in Transit Rs.13,789,451 

(2014-Rs.17,335,377)) 571,042,918 694,576,526 

Packing Materials 63,070,248 76,728,830 

Finished Goods ( Includes in Transit Rs.36,234,912 

(2014-Rs.24,354,689)) 517,079,952 747,317,447 

Stores and Spares 216,153,212 109,403,381 

Total 1,367,346,330 1,628,026,184 

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured, Considered Good:

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date 19,529,964 22,283,395 

Others 337,662,796 892,648,522 

357,192,760 914,931,917 

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful:

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date 11,766,964 15,833,013 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (11,766,964) (15,833,013)

—   —   

Total 357,192,760 914,931,917 

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on Hand 10,760,037 7,409,073 
Bank Balances in:

- Current Accounts 64,074,032 16,649,726 
- Margin Money Deposit (with less than 3 months maturity)# 4,476,284 29,698 

79,310,353 24,088,497 

Other Bank Balances:

Margin Money Deposit # 26,729,226 7,123,190 
(with maturity more than 3 months and less than 12 months)
Unpaid Dividend Account 5,341,677 4,594,436 

32,070,903 11,717,626 

Total 111,381,256 35,806,123 
# Kept with Bank for issuing Bank Guarantee
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17 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
As at As at

March 31,2016 December 31,2014
Rs Rs

Unsecured, Considered Good:
Loans and Advances to Employees 16,724,664 17,054,189 
Advances to Suppliers 35,522,750 62,978,565 
Prepaid Expenses 14,643,759 6,806,817 
Balance with Government Authorities 1,256,028 639,836 
Others (Nursery ,Gratuity recoverable from Fund etc.) 71,367,973 50,025,640 

Total 139,515,174 137,505,047   

18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, Considered Good:
Deposit with NABARD 20,641,300 48,037,600 
Deposit with Others 12,530,994 11,584,817 
Interest accrued on Deposits 7,439,636 7,878,632 

Total 40,611,930 67,501,049 

19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (To the extent not provided for)
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as Debts:
Income Tax Matters (without considering concomitant liability
in respect of Agricultural Income Tax) 40,660,409 56,282,212 
Central Excise Matters 244,377,697 12,934,600 
Sales Tax Matters 3,488,680 1,502,235 
Disputed Claims 2,516,000 2,516,000 

Future cash flows if any, in respect of above cannot be determined at this stage

20 COMMITMENTS (To the extent not provided for)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 
provided for Rs.735,099 (2014- Rs.15,909,800)

15 months period ended Year ended
21 PROPOSED DIVIDEND March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.
The final dividend proposed for the period is as follows:
On Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

Amount of Dividend Proposed 86,400,000 97,200,000 
Dividend per Equity Share Rs.4 Rs.4.50
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15 months period ended Year ended
22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.
Sale of Products:

Finished Goods 6,794,580,219 5,619,901,217 
Traded Goods 632,447,060 381,737,745 

7,427,027,279 6,001,638,962 
Other Operating Revenues:

Replanting and Other Subsidies 19,038,696 21,436,100 
7,446,065,975 6,023,075,062 

Less: Excise Duty 3,813,605 5,952,602 

Total 7,442,252,370 6,017,122,460

23 OTHER INCOME
Interest on Nabard Deposits 3,551,048 3,899,682 
Interest on Other Deposits 4,801,745 2,821,957 
Interest on Overdue Bills 987,133 464,005 
Interest on Income Tax — 10,179,664 
Interest on Loans — 1,148,000 
Profit on Sale/Discard of Fixed Assets (Net) — 771,910 
Liabilities no longer required written back 20,940,021 18,982,454 
Profit on Sale of Current Investments 5,208,100 2,615,422 
Exchange Gain (Net) — 1,767,286 
Miscellaneous Receipts 82,784,443 58,989,306 

Total  118,272,490 101,639,686

24 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw Material Consumed:
Opening Stock 694,576,526 533,089,193 
Add: Purchase 1,653,095,382 1,517,013,511 
Less: Closing Stock 571,042,918 694,576,526 

1,776,628,990 1,355,526,178
Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 76,728,830 46,456,480 
Add: Purchase 124,486,486 135,460,437 
Less: Closing Stock 63,070,248 76,728,830 

138,145,068 105,188,087 

Total 1,914,774,058 1,460,714,265
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15 months period ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.

24.1 Details of Raw and Packing material consumed:
Green Leaf (Bought) 364,495,402 367,104,602 
Tea including Tea waste 1,412,133,588 988,421,576 
Packing material 138,145,068 105,188,087 

Total  1,914,774,058 1,460,714,265

24.2 Value of imported and indigenous raw and packing material consumed
Imported 36,052,363 61,420,010 

Indigenous 1,878,721,695 1,399,294,255

25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS 
Opening Stock of Finished Goods 747,317,447 692,060,554 

Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods 517,079,952 747,317,447 

Total  230,237,495 (55,256,893)

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries,Wages and Bonus 2,128,110,056 1,570,117,701 
Contribution to Provident, Gratuity and Other Funds 328,402,777 333,729,956 
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 294,947,116 232,626,209 

Total  2,751,459,949 2,136,473,866 

27 FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Borrowings 25,612,027 31,573,722 
Interest on Income Tax 502,332 275,494 
Applicable net loss on foreign currency transactions 
and translation — 9,821 

Total 26,114,359 31,859,037 
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15 months period ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.
28 OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts (Refer Note 28.1) 433,155,092 346,623,188 
Power and Fuel 594,677,889 509,377,154 
Excise Duty and Cess 11,725,190 13,179,173 
Insurance 18,625,086 9,515,667 
Rent 33,027,027 23,338,281 
Rates and Taxes 22,169,092 20,464,655 
Repairs to Buildings 28,768,728 27,147,291 
Repairs to Machinery 66,448,506 42,033,122 
Advertisement 57,192,306 22,470,812 
Sales Promotion 186,942,329 167,767,193 
Brokerage and Commission 104,326,048 90,652,858 
Warehousing and Packing Charges 104,768,819 71,766,708 
Freight & Shipping Charges 196,409,227 167,620,452 
Other Selling Expenses 23,080,086 33,226,591 
Directors Fees 535,000 538,000 
Payment to Auditors:

As Auditor-Audit Fee 2,315,000 1,650,000 
For Other Services:

Tax Audit Fee 1,150,000 500,000 
Others 3,570,000 2,350,000 
For Reimbursement of Expenses 1,242,081 556,200 

Contributions towards Corporate Social Responsibility (See Note 28.3) 7,574,038 —   
Exchange Loss (Net) 3,505,004 —   
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 738,674 —   
Debts / Loans and advances Written Off 18,177,649 668,348 
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances 8,016,715 2,188,145 
Miscellaneous Expenses 267,930,081 207,239,213 

Total  2,196,069,667 1,760,873,051

28.1 Value of imported and indigenous stores and Spare parts consumed

15 months period ended Year Ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014
Rs. % Rs. %

Imported — — — — 
Indigenous 433,155,092 100 346,623,188 100 

28.2 Research and Development Expenditure charged to Revenue Rs.16,046,684 (2014 - Rs.13,403,450)
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28.3 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company needs to spend at least 2% of the average net profit
earned during the immediately preceeding 3 years on CSR activities. The areas for CSR activities identified by the
Company are special education for differently abled children, solar project, vocational training for livelihood and
environment sustainability.

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company is Rs. 7,040,403
(b) Amount spent during the period on:

Particulars In Cash "Yet to be 
paid in Cash" Total

Construction/Acquisition of any Asset —   —   —   

Others 7,574,038 —   7,574,038 

15 months period ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.

29 CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS

Raw Materials 39,987,634 65,228,991 
Capital Goods 5,764,748 —   
Stores & Spares/Packing Materials 844,900 1,572,703

Total 46,597,282 66,801,694 

30 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Pension 549,553 467,973 
Commission 1,629,453 3,221,518 
Bank Charges 1,457,768 733,279 
Consultancy 1,549,701 1,643,372 
Others 6,930,775 4,032,587 

31 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

FOB Value of Export Sale 1,000,284,020 1,243,918,812



GOODRICKE GROUP LTD

82

15 months period ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.
32 NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY TO

NON RESIDENT SHAREHOLDERS

No. of non-resident   shareholders 2 2

No. of equity shares held by them on which dividend was due 15,984,000 15,984,000

Year to which dividend relates 31.12.2014 31.12.2013

Amount remitted 71,928,000 71,928,000

33 The Company has taken various premises under operating lease having tenure of 11 months to 6 years. There is
no specific obligation for renewal of these agreements. Lease rent for the period amounts to Rs.26,545,633 (2014
-  Rs.18,914,272) This includes lease arrangements with escalation clauses of 5% to 10% at the end of each year.

34 Details of Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro and Small 
Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006

15 months period ended Year ended
March 31, 2016 December 31, 2014

Rs. Rs.
(i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon 

remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end 
of each accounting year;
Principal Portion —   381,552 
Interest Thereon —   123,134

(ii) Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 
16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
accounting year. —   —   

(iii) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
the appointed day during the year) but without adding 
the interest specified under this Act. —  —  

(iv) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the end of each accounting year. —   —   

(v) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure 
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006. —   —   

The Company has initiated the process of identification of suppliers registered under Micro and Small Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 by obtaining confirmation from the suppliers. The information shown above is only to the
extent of information obtained by the Company.
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35. Post Retirement Employee Benefits

"The Company operates defined contribution schemes like provident fund and defined contribution pension schemes. For these
schemes, contributions are made by the Company, based on current salaries, to recognized funds maintained by the Company
and for certain employees contributions are made to State Plans. In case of Provident fund schemes, contributions are also made
by the employees. An amount of  Rs.187,905,629 (2014 - Rs.124,042,025) has been charged to the Profit & Loss Account on
account of defined contribution schemes. The Company also operates defined benefit gratuity scheme, leave encashment,
defined benefit pension scheme, defined benefit provident fund scheme and post retirement medical scheme. The pension
benefits, medical benefits and leave encashment benefits are restricted to certain categories of employees. These schemes offer
specified benefits to the employees on retirement. Annual actuarial valuations are carried out by an independent actuary in
compliance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005) on Employee Benefits. Wherever recognized funds have been set up,
annual contributions are made by the Company, as required. Employees are not required to make any contribution."

Net Liability /(Asset) as per Actuarial Valuation at period/year end:
Provident Fund

2016 2014 2013 2012 2011
Present value of funded obligation 329,032,000 272,623,214 255,210,338 231,055,000 211,198,260 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 323,977,000 268,028,899 254,210,080 231,917,254 208,351,274 

5,055,000 4,594,315 1,000,258 (862,254) 2,846,986 
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation —   —   —   —   —   
Unrecognized past service cost —   —   —   —   —   
Net Liability/(Asset) 5,055,000 4,594,315 1,000,258 (862,254) 2,846,986 

Pension
2016 2014 2013 2012 2011

Present value of funded obligation 325,423,000 279,274,767 258,176,601 249,619,601 217,470,253 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 297,306,000 276,501,235 261,387,324 236,834,324 216,957,377 

28,117,000 2,773,532 (3,210,723) 12,785,277 512,876 
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation —   —   —   —   —   
Unrecognized past service cost —   —   —   —   —   
Net Liability/(Asset) 28,117,000 2,773,532 (3,210,723) 12,785,277 512,876 

Gratuity
2016 2014 2013 2012 2011

Present value of funded obligation 848,561,000 814,277,000 632,350,000 618,190,000 614,252,000 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 775,872,000 615,236,000 615,255,000 614,860,000 613,721,000 

72,689,000 199,041,000 17,095,000 3,330,000 531,000 
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation —   —   —   —   —   
Unrecognized past service cost —   —   —   —   —   
Net Liability/(Asset) 72,689,000 199,041,000 17,095,000 3,330,000 531,000 

Medical
2016 2014 2013 2012 2011

Present value of funded obligation —   —   —   —   —   
Fair Value of Plan Assets —   —   —   —   —   

—   —   —   —   —   
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation 91,317,000 88,945,868 71,482,372 65,190,218 66,380,921 
Unrecognized past service cost —   —   —   —   —   
Net Liability/(Asset) 91,317,000 88,945,868 71,482,372 65,190,218 66,380,921 

Leave Encashment
2016 2014 2013 2012 2011

Present value of funded obligation —   —   —   —   —   
Fair Value of Plan Assets —   —   —   —   —   

—   —   —   —   —   
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation 27,081,755 19,571,958 17,518,858 16,343,680 14,146,139 
Unrecognized past service cost —   —   —   —   —   
Net Liability/(Asset) 27,081,755 19,571,958 17,518,858 16,343,680 14,146,139
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Amounts recognized in "Contribution to Provident, Gratuity and other funds", "Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc" and
"Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses" under Note 26 are follows:

(Rs.)

Provident 

Fund Pension Gratuity Medical Leave Encashment

2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014

Current Service Cost 42,490,000 19,679,158 7,802,000 24,705,252 55,828,000 32,410,000 3,811,000 3,243,502 3,395,878 1,551,974 

Interest cost 49,173,000 22,052,956 27,213,000 20,257,461 77,416,000 56,446,000 8,611,132 5,657,520 1,798,465 1,354,859 

Expected Return on plan assets (48,523,111) (21,859,634) (27,365,765) (20,910,961) (70,669,000) (47,837,000) —   —   —   —   

Past Service Cost 3,075,000 —   —   (73,588,682) —   (6,559,000) —   7,132,878 —   (1,689,974)

Net actuarial loss/(gain) 

recognized during the period (2,321,000) 3,410,683 26,302,233 61,587,916 (8,927,000) 147,486,000 (4,371,000) 2,956,330 5,490,070 2,002,485 

Total 43,893,889 23,283,163 33,951,468 12,050,986 53,648,000 181,946,000 8,051,132 18,990,230 10,684,413 3,219,344 

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the obligations:

(Rs.)

Funded Unfunded

Provident Fund Pension Gratuity Medical Leave Encashment

2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014

Opening defined benefit obligation 272,623,214 255,210,338 279,274,767 258,176,601 814,277,000 632,350,000 88,945,868 71,482,372 19,571,958 17,518,858

Current service cost 42,490,000 19,679,158 7,802,000 24,705,252 55,828,000 32,410,000 3,811,000 3,243,502 3,395,878 1,551,974

Past service cost 3,075,000 -   -   (73,588,682) -   (6,559,000) -   7,132,878 -   (1,689,974)

Interest Cost 49,173,000 22,052,956 27,213,000 20,257,461 77,416,000 56,446,000 8,611,132 5,657,520 1,798,465 1,354,859

Actuarial loss/(gain) (2,321,000) 1,713,022 25,423,233 59,633,344 (18,732,000) 150,430,000 (4,371,000) 2,956,330 5,490,070 2,002,485 

Benefit Paid (36,008,214) (26,032,260) (14,290,000) (9,909,209) (80,228,000) (50,800,000) (5,680,000) (1,526,734) (3,174,616) (1,166,244)

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 329,032,000 272,623,214 325,423,000 279,274,767 848,561,000 814,277,000 91,317,000 88,945,868 27,081,755 19,571,958

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets:

(Rs.)

Provident Fund Pension Gratuity

2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014

Opening fair value of plan Assets 268,028,889 254,210,080 276,501,235 261,387,324 615,236,000 615,255,000 

Expected Return on Plan Assets 48,523,111 21,859,634 27,365,765 20,910,961 70,669,000 47,837,000 

Actuarial gain/(loss) -   (1,697,661) (879,000) (1,954,572) (9,805,000) 2,944,000 

Contribution by employer 41,668,000 19,689,106 8,608,000 6,066,731 180,000,000 -   

Benefits Paid (34,243,000) (26,032,260) (14,290,000) (9,909,209) (80,228,000) (50,800,000)

Closing Fair value of Plan Assets 323,977,000 268,028,899 297,306,000 276,501,235 775,872,000 615,236,000 

Actual Return on Plan Assets 48,523,111 20,161,973 26,486,765 18,956,389 60,864,000 50,781,000
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Major Categories  of Plan Assets as a percentage of fair value of the total plan assets:

2016 2014
Equities 2.70% 3.33%
Fixed Income Debt /Securities/Bonds 88.77% 88.43%
Other Assets 8.53% 8.24%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on plan assets related to Gratuity Scheme for 2016 and the preceeding four years are Rs.

(9,805,000) Rs.29,44,000; Rs.1,212,000; Rs.4017000 and Rs.(144,000) respectively.

Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on plan liabilities related to Gratuity Scheme for 2016 and the preceeding four years are

Rs.22,157,000Rs.(49,562,000) Rs.6,618,000; Rs(6,577,000) and Rs.(78,761,000) respectively.

Effect of increase/ decrease  of one percentage point in the assumed medical cost trend rates:

As per Actuary, the cost trend in rates in case of medical benefits have no effect on the amount recognised since the benefit

is in the form of a fixed amount.

Principal Actuarial assumptions used:

2016 2014 2013 2012 2011

Discount rates 7.75% 8.00% 9.30% 8.30% 8.50%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.5%, 8%,8.6%, 8.27%, 8%, 8.11%,7.61%,7.97% 8.21%,8.3%,7.67%, 7.9%,8%,

8.6% 8.78%,8.42%, 8.73% 7%, 8.42% "7.72% & 7.96%"

Expected Salary Increase Rates 6% to 8% 6% to 7% 6% to 7% 5% to 7% 5% to 7%

Mortality rates IALM IALM LIC (2006-08) LIC(1994-96) LIC(1994-96) 

(2006-2008) (2006-2008) mortality tables mortality tables mortality tables

The estimates of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation takes into account factors like inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. The expected return on plan
assets is based on actuarial expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the Funds during
the estimated term of the obligations.

The contribution expected to be made by the Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 has not been ascertained.
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37 Related Party Disclosures
a) Shareholders of the Company:

Western Dooars Investment Ltd. and Assam Dooars Investment Ltd. together hold 74% of the Equity
Share Capital of the Company. Camellia Plc is the ultimate holding company which is indirectly holding
Western Dooars Investment Ltd. and Assam Dooars Investment Ltd.

b) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

Fellow Subsidiary Companies:

(i) Stewart Holl (India) Limited (ii) Amgoorie India Limited (iii) Koomber Properties & Leasing Company
Private Limited (iv) Goodricke Technical & Management Services Limited (v) Borbam Investments
Limited (vi) Koomber Tea Company Private Limited (vii) Lebong Investments Private Limited (viii) Elgin
Investments & Trading Company Limited"

c) Key Managerial Personnel:

Arun Narain Singh - Managing Director & CEO

Arjun Sengupta- VP & CFO

Subrata Banerjee- Company Secretary

36. Segment Information
Export Domestic Total

2016 2014 2016 2014 2016 2014
Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

Total Segment Revenue from sales 1,828,573,482 1,286,040,809 6,128,644,884 5,020,274,226 7,957,218,366 6,306,315,035 
Less: Inter Segment Revenue from sales 7,535,000 17,562,602 522,656,087 287,113,471 530,191,087 304,676,073 

1,821,038,482 1,268,478,207 5,605,988,797 4,733,160,755 7,427,027,279 6,001,638,962 
Less Excise Duty 3,813,605 5,952,602 —   —   3,813,605 5,952,602 
Total  Revenue from Sales to 
External Customers 1,817,224,877 1,262,525,605 5,605,988,797 4,733,160,755 7,423,213,674 5,995,686,360 

Segment Result 107,700,111 80,655,236 24,998,657 308,454,753 132,698,768 389,109,989 

Less: Unallocable expense net of income 69,638,762 66,859,456 

Less : Interest 26,114,359 31,859,037 

Profit  Before Taxation 36,945,647 290,391,496 

Provision for Taxation 165,846,257 68,004,569 

Profit  After Taxation (128,900,610) 222,386,927 

Segment Assets 515,018,522 562,280,046 2,693,584,093 3,141,258,444 3,208,602,615 3,703,538,490 

Unallocated Corporate Assets 316,147,427 271,536,540 

Total Assets  3,524,750,042 3,975,075,030 

Segment Liabilities 285,622,516 350,830,613 1,016,111,792 1,140,424,611 1,301,734,308 1,491,255,224 

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 324,529,678 352,443,828 

Total Liabilities 1,626,263,986 1,843,699,052 

Capital Expenditure 14,599,098 18,605,759 139,315,174 121,768,508 

Depreciation 11,533,285 5,737,883 153,163,048 113,410,199 

Non Cash – Expenditure —   —   26,194,364 2,856,493 
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d) Particulars of Transactions during the 15 months period ended 31st March, 2016
(Rs.)

Nature of Transactions Shareholders Fellow Key Total
Subsidiary Management
Companies Personnel

Sale of Goods : —   476,705 —   476,705 
To two fellow Subsidiaries : 
Rs.350,296 (Rs.910,241), Rs 126,409 (Rs 16,924) —   (927,165) —   (927,165)

Sale of Fixed Assets :
To two fellow subsidiaries —   605,000 —   605,000 
Rs.495,000 (Rs.Nil); Rs.110,000 (Rs.Nil) (Nil) (Nil)

Purchase of Fixed Assets —   780,000 —   780,000 
From a Fellow Subsidiary —   (Nil) —   (Nil) 
Rs.780,000(Rs.Nil)

Purchase of Goods & Services : —   988,740,454 —   988,740,454
"From three fellow Subsidiaries : 
Rs. 307,553,225 (Rs.199,895,094),
Rs.574,277,730 (Rs562,795,389), Rs.106,909,499 (Rs.61,538,447)" —   (824,228,930) —   (824,228,930)

Remuneration Paid : —   —   24,674,328 24,674,328 
To Managing Director : Rs.18,596,101 (Rs.15,239,926) —   —   (19,610,506) (19,610,506)
To CFO : Rs.3,604,044
To Company Secretary: Rs.2,474,183

Dividends Paid : 71,928,000 3,307,195 —   75,235,195 
To Two Shareholders : 
Rs.46,753,200 (Rs.46,753,200), Rs.25,174,800 (Rs.25,174,800) (71,928,000) (4,041,901) —   (75,969,901)

"To four fellow Subsidiaries : 
Rs.888,359 (Rs.888,359), Rs.1,124,424 (Rs1,859,130),
Rs.344,912 (Rs.344,912), Rs.949,500 (Rs.949,500)"

Interest paid —   4,639,382 -   4,639,382 
To two Fellow Subsidiaries (3,109,150) (3,109,150)
Rs.3,703,356 (Rs.3,109,150), Rs.936,026 (Rs.Nil) —   -   -   

Reimbursement of Expenses (Net) —   11,040,928 -   11,040,928 
From One Fellow Subsidiary : 
Rs 6,327,382 (Rs.2,875,197), —   (7,889,454) -   (7,889,454)

To three Fellow Subsidiaries : 
Rs. 4,387,960 (Rs.2,294,902), Rs.2,390,774(Rs1,714,104);
Rs.10,589,576 (Rs.6,755,645),

Rent paid to fellow subsidiary —   7,990,057 -   7,990,057 
—   (6,310,076) -   (6,310,076)

Loan taken: —   100,000,000 -   100,000,000 
From two Fellow Subsidiaries : 
Rs 80,000,000 (Rs.80,000,000), —   (80,000,000) -   (80,000,000)
Rs.20,000,000(Rs.Nil) —   

Repayment of loan: —   -   -   
To two Fellow Subsidiaries : Rs 80,000,000 (Rs.80,000,000), —   100,000,000 -   100,000,000 
Rs.20,000,000(Rs.Nil) (80,000,000) (80,000,000)

Outstanding as at period end :
Debit —   —   -   -   
Credit —   180,548,692 600,000 181,148,692 

—   (260,638,977) (3,400,000) (264,038,977)

Note: Previous year's figures are in brackets.
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On behalf of the Board
Prabal Kr. Sarkar A. N. Singh

Partner A. Sengupta Managing Director & CEO
Plot No. Y-14, Block EP Membership No. 052340 Vice President & CFO S. Kaul
Sector V, Salt Lake LOVELOCK & LEWES K. Sinha
Kolkata - 700 091 Firm Registration No. 301056E S. Banerjee P. K. Sen
23rd Day of May, 2016 Chartered Accountants Company Secretary Directors

38 Consequent upon the vesting of the Indian undertakings on 1st January 1978 of the eight  Sterling Company’s under
the scheme of amalgamation, the title in respect of certain tea estates acquired under such scheme, are to be
transferred in the name of the Company. The Company has been legally advised that the notification issued by the
Government of West Bengal in 1994 for payment of salami does not apply to the Company.

39 Provision for taxation has been made as per the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the rules framed there under with
reference to the profit for the 15 months period ended 31st March, 2016 which extends over two assessment years,
Assessment Year 2015-2016 and Assessment Year 2016-2017. The ultimate tax liability for the Assessment Year 2016-
2017 will be determined on the total income for the period from 1st April, 2015 to 31st March, 2016.

40 Earning Per Equity Share (Basic and Diluted)

The calculation of earning per share is based on the Profit after taxation of Rs. -128,900,610 (2014 - Rs.222,386,927)
and Equity Shares outstanding (Nominal value Rs. 10/- each) during the period aggregating to 21,600,000 (2014 -
21,600,000). 

41 Outstanding Foreign Currency exposure: As at As at
March 31,2016 December 31,2014

US$ Rs US$ Rs

Amount Receivable in Foreign currency 658,203 43,796,826 3,282,798 207,899,589 

Amount Payable in Foreign currency 22,994 1,530,008 34,573 2,189,481 

42 To align with the provisions of Section 2 (41) of Companies Act, 2013, the company has decided to prepare
Financial Statements for a period of 15 months commencing from 1st January 2015. Therefore, the results of
previous year are not comparable with that of the current period.

43 Depreciation on assets till 31st December, 2014 was provided on written down value method. With Effect from 1st
January, 2015, the Company has changed the method of depreciation to Straight Line Method to align with the
industry practice and the net surplus arising due to retrospective computation aggregates to Rs.419,772,448.
Consequent to the change in estimated useful life as per the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013,
the charge on account of change in estimates aggregates to Rs.49,392,906 These items have been accounted and
disclosed under exceptional items. As a result of the change in method of depreciation, the charge for the fifteen
months period ended 31st March 2016 was lower by Rs.39,803,010 and the charge on account of change in
accounting estimates was higher by Rs.66,221,739. The impact of such change on the future profits of the Company
is not ascertainable at this stage.

44 Stock of teas as on 31st March 2016 has been valued at lower of the cost of production (based upon expenditure
for the 12 months period ending 31st March 2016) and the net realisable value.  Production of tea not being uniform
throughout the year, stock valuation would be unrealistic if it is based on actual expenditure incurred during 15
months period ended 31st March 2016.

45 The Company has reclassified previous years figure to conform to this period classification along with other
regrouping/rearrangement wherever considered necessary.
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(Rs. in millions)

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2016
(15 Months 

ended 
31.03.2016) 

Fixed Assets (at cost less depreciation) 812.76 943.38 959.33 992.95 1,022.72 1,387.61 

Investments 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 

Current Assets (Less current liabilities) 634.36 984.70 1,240.44 1,112.13 1,134.33 576.30 

Non Current Assets (Less non current liabilites) — — 29.04 (9.79) (16.70) 29.91 

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (14.10) (10.43) (2.39) 6.00 70.49 (95.35)

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED  1,433.04 1,917.67 2,226.44 2,101.31 2,211.24 1,898.49 

Equity shares 216.00 216.00 216.00 216.00 216.00 216.00 

Reserves and Surplus 1,217.04 1,490.87 1,590.44 1,809.62 1,915.37 1,682.49 

SHAREHOLDERS' FUND (NET WORTH) 1,433.04 1,706.87 1,806.44 2,025.62 2,131.37 1,898.49 

Secured and Unsecured loans — 210.80 420.00 75.69 79.46 —   

TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED 1,433.04 1,917.67 2,226.44 2,101.31 2,211.23 1,898.49 

Sales 4,004.30 4,851.30 5,383.81 5,783.11 6,001.63 7,427.03 

Profit before tax 630.71 503.35 274.44 486.18 290.39 36.95 

Provision for tax 180.75 129.11 74.40 152.61 68.00 165.85 

Profit/(Loss) after tax 449.96 374.24 199.99 333.57 222.39 (128.90)

Earning per share (Rs.)  20.83 17.32 9.26 15.44 10.30 (5.97)

Net worth per Equity Share (Rs.) 66.34 79.02 83.63 93.78 98.69 87.89 

DIVIDEND 

Percentage 50.00 40.00 40.00 45.00 45.00 40.00 

Amount 108.00 86.40 86.40 97.20 97.20 86.40 

TOTAL NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS 14,315 13,688 14,046 13,862 13,943 14,287 

PLANTED AREA & PRODUCTION: 

Area under Mature Tea (hectares) 8,582.11 8,533.82 8,515.30 8,490.94 8,529.61 8,567.13 

Area under Young Tea (hectares) 1,127.84 1,173.88 1,127.66 1,108.85 1,115.78 1,145.24 

Total planted area (hectares) 9,709.95 9,807.70 9,642.96 9,599.79 9,645.39 9,712.37 

Production-Kgs. (millions) (own crop) 17.00 17.21 16.14 17.99 17.50 18.52 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 24,931 24,571 24,449 24,321 24,466 24,491 

Financial, Production and Other Statistics
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Mature Tea Young Tea Total Planted Own Crop Yield per
Area Area Area (Gross) Hectare

GARDENS (in Hectares) (in Hectares) (in Hectares) (Kgs) (Kgs)

DOOARS

DANGUAJHAR 592.05 74.70 666.75 1527657 2580
LEESH RIVER 524.42 83.96 608.38 1221102 2328
MEENGLAS 532.29 71.68 603.97 1324031 2487
AIBHEEL 727.03 103.87 830.90 1950739 2683
CHULSA 371.99 42.71 414.70 718823 1932
CHALOUNI 470.80 73.72 544.52 851785 1809
HOPE 369.89 44.53 414.42 984560 2662
JITI 464.42 82.52 546.94 1362886 2935
GANDRAPARA 695.60 108.98 804.58 1962514 2821
LAKHIPARA 537.99 78.09 616.08 1519675 2825
KUMARGRAM 513.92 121.21 635.13 1270266 2472
SANKOS 590.74 81.99 672.73 1199982 2031

TOTAL 6,391.14 967.96 7,359.10 15,894,020 2,487

PREVIOUS YEAR 6,356.19 951.43 7,307.62 15,146,678 2,383

ASSAM

ORANGAJULI 673.91 58.26 732.17 1095734 1626
NONAIPARA 613.65 70.97 684.62 1046454 1705

TOTAL 1,287.56 129.23 1,416.79 2,142,188 1,664

PREVIOUS YEAR 1283.99 117.30 1401.29 1915832 1492

DARJEELING

THURBO 465.88 22.56 488.44 289904 622
BADAMTAM 295.21 20.83 316.04 136215 461
BARNESBEG 127.34 4.66 132.00 53862 423

TOTAL 888.43 48.05 936.48 479,981 540

PREVIOUS YEAR 889.43 47.05 936.48 436,355 491

GRAND TOTAL 8,567.13 1,145.24 9,712.37 18,516,189 2,161

PREVIOUS YEAR 8,529.61 1,115.78 9,645.39 17,498,865 2,052

STATISTICS - AREA AND CROP (2015-16) - 15 MONTHS
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ROUTE MAP TO THE AGM VENUE  OF GOODRICKE GROUP LIMITED TO BE HELD ON 
THURSDAY, JULY 28, 2016, AT 10:00 A.M.

TO ITC SONAR BANGLA & SCIENCE CITY
TO PARK CIRCUS
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